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MR
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

TRAREBBESEATBEE ¥4 - EE -~ The following tables are summaries of the Group’s results, assets,
BEREREE liabilities and equity for the past five financial years:

Year ended 31 December
BZE+=-A=1—-HLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

“eRNF  CTILE  CEIAF CTTREE C3INS
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARMTR ARMTE ARETR

HERA Revenue 777,807 834,608 681,617 455410 658,612
Hep: Where:
MLCCE R (Hrzt1) MLCC business (note 1) 232,646 221,545 182,402 151,737 115470
BEBFHR22) Mobile phones (note 2) 545,161 609,774 484428 235,844 51,924
BE)Fl Tt Mobile phone components
(Hit3) (note 3) - 3289 14787 67,829 491218
SR Cost of sales (679,592) (701,641) (575459) (385,663) (601,615)
EH Gross profit 98,215 132,967 106,158 69,747 56,997
FEMHE Profit for the year 11,317 68433 48139 19,121 28494
M AL attributable to:
—BRARERAA - Equity holders of the parent 11,317 68433 48176 19826 29877
- PHRE - Minority interests - - (37) (705) (1383)
BREARRTI(HZ5) Basic earnings per share (note 5) 28¢centsfll | 26centsfill 161 centsfll 66centsfll 100 centsfll

As at 31 December

Rt=B=+-AH

2008 2007 2005 2004

“EENE —TELE T “TTHE _EEINF

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BERERE Assets and liabilities ARBTRE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETET

BEE Total assets 677,357 623,102 438,236 458,031 304,339

BaE Total liabilities 288,694 235,027 213112 211,140 160,585

Y 5 Total equity 388,663 388,075 225,124 246,891 144,254

WAL attributable to:

—FNRIIRERE A ~ Equity holders of the parent 388,663 388,075 204,947 246,677 143,335

—DERE ~ Minority interests - - 177 214 919
BisE Notes:

1. MICCR—EBERSH b BEZAMEERHE @ 1. MLCCis a type of capacitor which is a basic electronic component that has been

BERHBEE FEROEREARTH - MLCCEBFTIFH widely used in information technology, communication and consumer electronic

WABNSRYE  SHEREBMLCCEMTFRIMA © products. The revenue generated from the MLCC business is revenue derived from

the manufacture, sale and trading of MLCC products.

2. AEEBHFESBAGHRABREREEBEF 2. The revenue generated from the mobile phones segment of the Group is revenue

HEETIS EIA o derived from the manufacture and sale of mobile phones.
3. AEEBBFHAGSBAGEAOKRARNRE $5EX 3. The revenue generated from the mobile phone components segment of the Group is
BEEBRETHAMATBHIA - revenue derived from the manufacture, sale and trading of mobile phone components.
02 FISEN (EE) BIRATE s ZBBENEER
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ARABR2007F3 A6 ARAS S FMAL - BIEA
SEAEEEAARROREBHERIMERAFE
REM(TRGDEE])  EEAEEREMETHE
H(TEEA]D  RRAREKNATEEBTSHEARN

REERAT]

ARARRMGER2007F 12820 BETBHAR A
RARI(THERAT]) EARKIN ET » FALAGHEE 2004,
2005 %20065F 12 A31 BIEFE 2 BREAREF 2 IR 1H
IEFHE - BIEARARZEE B ETIRZN300,000,000
B WA SERBRERENMANSEARNEEFE
—HEE - AATERZ2007E 128318 LEEZF
AR EAR B F 2 B An A9 2 - BR T LA £300,000,0008%
LBARHN - IRBIER20078 12 A21 BARBIRMGE L
18317 2 B3 2 INAEF39843,014,0008% ° FALARTE &,
ZE2008F 12 A31 A L FE 2 FRERRF 2 1D I
FHE - BREFHZE2007912 831 L E400,000,000/%
B 3T E AR IA KRR 200851 A 15 BT{F BRARC AR HE 1R
472 INEF55,290,0008% °

“EENGFR - FHER (E) ARATF
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The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 March 2007.
Pursuant to a reorganisation of the Group completed on 5 December 2007 (the
“Reorganisation”) to rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the
public listing of the Company’s shares on Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Share Offer”), the Company became the ultimate holding
company of the subsidiaries comprising the Group.

The shares of the Company were successfully listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 21 December 2007. The
weighted average number of shares used to calculate the basic earnings per share
for the year ended 31 December 2004, 2005 and 2006 comprises the pro forma
issued shares capital of the Company of 300,000,000 shares as if the Reorganisation
of the Group as mentioned in the prospectus had been in place. The weighted
average of number of shares used for the year ended 31 December 2007 includes
the weighted average of 3,014,000 issued upon listing of the Company’s shares on
21 December 2007 in addition to the aforementioned 300,000,000 ordinary shares.
The weighted average number of shares used to calculate the basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2008 includes the weighted average of
5,290,000 shares issued upon exercise of the over-allotment option on 15 January
2008 in addition to 400,000,000 ordinary shares issued during the year ended 31
December 2007.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Shuang Mei

Mr. Liao Jie

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Hao

Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Li Hegiu

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Liu Huanbin

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman)
Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Liu Huanbin

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Weirong

Ms. Shuang Mei

Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Weirong

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
PO Box 2681,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

8th Floor, Tien Chu Commercial Building

173-174 Gloucester Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
EYANG Building

No. 3 Qimin Street

No. 2 Langshan Road, North Area

Hi-tech Industrial Park

Nanshan District

Shenzhen, the PRC

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Chen Weirong
Mr. Leung Wai Chung

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT AND COMPANY
SECRETARY
Mr. Leung Wai Chung cra

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 513GT

Strathvale House

North Church Street

George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

British West Indies

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China, Shenzhen Nanshan Branch
China Construction Bank, Luohu Branch

Shenzhen Ping An Bank, Fuhua Branch

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation

Hang Seng Bank Limited

PRCLAWYER
Win & Sun Law Firm

AS TO CAYMAN ISLANDS LAW
Conyers Dill & Pearman

HONG KONG LAWYER
Michael Li & Co.

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

PROPERTY VALUER
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
CAF Securities Company Limited

STOCK CODE
00117

COMPANY WEDSITE
http://www.szeyang.com
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN

Mr. Chen Weirong (BR{E48), aged 50, is an Executive Director and
Chairman of the Board, as well as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is in charge of the corporate strategy, planning and
overall development. He is also the founder of the Group. Mr. Chen
graduated from g T 27 (South China Institute of Technology*,
now known as ZEFIE T K8, South China University of Technology®)
in 1982 with a bachelor's degree in engineering. Upon graduation,
Mr. Chen started his career as a technician in FE{E&£E BN AR
/28] (Konka Group Company Limited*) in 1982, a major consumer
electronics manufacturing and distribution enterprise in the PRC, and
became its managing director in 1994 until 2001. In 1996, Mr. Chen was
elected as "Outstanding Young Entrepreneur of Shenzhen”, in 1997,
he was awarded the “National ‘May 1st’ Labour Medal” (&2 [F—]
E)HEE) and in 1998, he was elected as a representative in the
Standing Committee of the 9th National People’s Congress. Mr. Chen
has been the Chairman of the Group since November 2001.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Shuang Mei (F818), aged 41, is an Executive Director of the
Company. She is also the general manager of the wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Shenzhen Eycom Technology Co., Ltd.
and is in charge of the strategic planning and development of mobile
phone business of the Group. Ms. Shuang graduated from F R A
& (Nanjing University*) in 1991 with a bachelor’s degree in arts and
started her career as a journalist for two newspapers until 1999. In 2000,
she obtained a master’s degree in business administration from the
University of Lancaster, and joined the Group in 2001.

Mr. Liao Jie (B2#5), aged 41, is an Executive Director of the Company.
He is also the general manager of MLCC division and is in charge of
the strategic planning and development of MLCC business of the
Group. Mr. Liao graduated from ZFEFIE T K2 (Huazhong University
of Science and Technology*, now known as FEH R AE) with a
bachelor's degree in engineering in June 1990. He obtained Master
of Science specializing in electronics components from #FIE T K
& (Huazhong University of Science and Technology*, now known
as FEAR R KE) in 1993. Upon graduation, Mr. Liao joined Konka
Group Company Limited as a manager, responsible for supervising the
quality control of electronics raw materials. He was then transferred to
the sales division to take charge of the sales in Eastern China. Mr. Liao
joined the Group in October 2001 after he left Konka Group Company
Limited.

* For identification purposes only
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chen Hao (fRJ%), aged 44, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Chen graduated from #EF I8 T K2 (Huazhong
University of Science and Technology*, now known as # A EHH K E2)
with a bachelor's degree in computer science in 1989. He has over 16
years of experience in the information technology industry, especially
in business management and operations, and information technology
applications/services. Mr. Chen joined Legend Group in 1992. He was
the founder and the general manager of Legend Advanced System Ltd..
During his tenure, he was responsible for strategic management and
business implementation. Mr. Chen founded Legend Capital, a venture
capital firm, in 2001, and has served as head of investment ever since.
He is currently a director of the company. He is responsible for overall
control and coordination of investment activities at Legend Capital.
Mr. Chan is also a director of a number of information technology
companies, including X B BIETEH R T F PR A |l (Worksoft Creative
Software Tech., Ltd.*), Spreadtrust Communications, Inc. and b R 5
R BRATE R A 7] (Beijing Kaitone Information Technologies
Co., Ltd.*). He was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company in April 2007.

Mr. Cheng Wusheng (252 4E), aged 41, is a Non-executive Director
of the Company. He was regional manager of Konka Group Company
Limited and deputy general manager of BREAEEE T HR A A
(Shaanxi Konka Electronic Co., Ltd.*) from October 1990 to June 1996.
Through these positions, he was responsible for sales and promotion
of products. Mr. Cheng is currently director of JZJI T & BFE 5
AR A7 (Shenzhen Jinmaixin Trading Co., Ltd *) and &I Th
2B EHFMR /AT (Shenzhen Nanhua Yaxing Industrial Co., Ltd.*),
both of which are trading companies. He has shareholding interests
in the Company through his wholly-owned company WU SHENG
Management Limited. He was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company in April 2007.

Mr. Li Heqiu (B EK), aged 46, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Li has been director of REEM/KFEETRARA
7] (Dongguan Yongtai Construction and Engineering Co., Ltd.*) since
25 March 2002 to 1 November 2005 and general manager from 25
March 2002 to present. Through these positions, he was responsible for
decision making in construction projects and operation management.
He is currently director of RZEmM KRB EEGR A7) (Dongguan
Yongtai Industrial Co., Ltd.*), and REEMKEBEZRERRE A )
(Dongguan Yonglong Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.*). Mr. Li became
a shareholder of the Company in June 2005. Mr. Li has shareholding
interests in the Company through his wholly-owned company HEQ
Management Limited. He was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company in April 2007.

¥ For identification purposes only
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Mr. Zhang Zhilin (3R & #K), aged 58, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. He was the factory director of /& E 1% & B HE AR5
NmFEIE™ (Shanghai Pudong Heging Town Xiangyang Village
Xiangyang Electroplating Factory*) from February 1981 to November
1985 and was also the factory director of =3 H 58 3= 5 48 B &Y SL Bk
(Shanghai Pudong Meiling Plastics Factory*) from December 1985 to
January 1994. As factory director, he was responsible for production
operation and human resource management. Mr. Zhang is currently
the director of F/8ZEEIEZEGR A 7] (Shanghai Huali Packing Co,,
Ltd.¥), B EEGREZEEEBEFR AR (Shanghai Meiyang Precision
Moulding Co., Ltd.*), /85 E % AR A F) (Shanghai Huiyang
Industrial Co,, Ltd¥), /EZRE RGBT AR A7) (Shanghai Taihui
LCD Co., Ltd.*), and F/8HREEB B R MM (Shanghai Pudong
Meiling Plastics Factory*), all of which are manufacturing companies.
He was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company in April
2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pan Wei (%&{&), aged 53, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Pan graduated from 4t 7% 8 2 2252
(Beijing Institute of Steel*, now known as 1t TR K E2, University of
Science and Technology Beijing®) with a bachelor's degree in physical
chemistry in 1982. He obtained a master’s degree in engineering
and doctoral degree in engineering from Nagoya University in 1987
and 1990 respectively. He is currently a professor in the Department
of Materials Science and Engineering, Tsinghua University. Mr. Pan
specialises in research and educational projects, including thermal
barrier materials, transparent ceramic materials, nanomaterials and
devices and other conductive materials. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2007.

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (5R272), aged 45, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chu graduated from the
University of Hong Kong in 1998 with a master's degree in business
administration. Mr. Chu is a fellow practicing member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, associate member
of Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Chu was the executive
director of Mastermind Capital Limited Z12i& & B[R A &) (formerly
known as Aepx Capital Limited £ E B R A 7)), an investment
company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) with a designated stock code of 905, for the
period from September 2005 to March 2007. Currently, Mr. Chu is the
executive director of Chinese People Holdings Company Limited and
independent non-executive director of Bright Prosperous Holdings
Limited. These two companies are both listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code of 681 and 723 respectively. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2007.

* For identification purposes only
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Mr. Liu Huanbin (Z2#7), aged 68, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from & T 267 (South
China Institute of Technology*, now known as FEFIE T A, South
China University of Technology*) in 1965 with a bachelor's degree in
engineering. He holds professorship in chemical engineering in
32 T KE (South China University of Technology*), and was later
promoted to the principal of the university for the tenure from May
1995 to September 2003. In 2001, Mr. Liu was awarded as a foreign
academician by Academy of Engineering of Russia. He is currently
a professor in the South China University of Technology. He was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in April 2007.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Xu Chuncheng (1&4%38), aged 47, is the chief financial officer of the
Company. He is responsible for overall financial and strategic planning
of the Group. Mr. Xu graduated from 8 = A &3 22f5% (Hunan Normal
College*, now known as j#Fa A &3 AE2, Hunan Normal University*)
in 1982 with a bachelor's degree in science. He obtained a master’s
degree in quantitative economics from & i=i& 20t (Changsha
Railway College*, now known as A g A2 Central South University*)
in 1987 and further obtained a doctoral degree in international finance
from the Graduate School of the People’s Bank of China in 1996. From
1987 to 1992, he was the supervisor of research division of The People’s
Bank of China, Hunan Branch where he was responsible for the
research of macro- economics and finance. From 1994 to 1998, he was
the deputy general manager of international business and merchant
banking divisions under China Merchants Bank, Headquarters where
he was responsible for the management of foreign exchange policies
and international finance business. Prior to joining the Group in August
2006, Mr. Xu worked in Konka Group and Konka Telecommunications
Technology as deputy chief financial officer and chief financial officer
respectively where he was in charge of strategic corporate financial
planning and international trading from 1998 to 2006.

*  For identification purposes only
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I hereby present the annual financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2008 on behalf of the Board of the Company.

In 2008, global economy was hit by the most severe financial tsunami
in which numerous multinational corporations and prestigious
companies collapsed. Like many companies, the Group was affected
by the financial tsunami and the operation environment had become
very challenging. Yet, our business managed to grow to certain extent
by virtue of the efforts of all our staff. Firstly, as for the MLCC business,
under the circumstance where gross margin and gross margin ratio
decreased or losses were recorded within the industry globally, both of
the gross margin and gross margin ratio of our MLCC business in 2008
have increased when compared to 2007 while the sales revenue from
MLCC business also experienced a rise against the general recession
due to the improvement in core competitiveness of the Group's
products through technology advancement and the realignment of
our product portfolio. Besides, the Group’s subsidiaries, Shenzhen
Eyang Technology Development Co., Ltd. passed the national new and
high technology certification examination in 2008, following which a
tax incentive for new and high technology company was granted with
a effective term of three years starting from 2008.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the year, sales revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB777.8 million, of which sales revenue from MLCC business grew
approximately 5% from 2007 to approximately RMB232.6 million and
sales revenue from mobile phones business dropped approximately
10.6% from 2007 to approximately RMB545.2 million respectively.
Profit attributable to shareholders dropped approximately 83.5% from
2007 to approximately RMB11.3 million; whereas earnings per share
decreased approximately 87.6% from 2007 to approximately RMB2.8
cents.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

MLCC BUSINESS

Currently, MLCC business is the core business of the Group. The end
user market of the Group’s MLCC business mainly located in Europe
and America. Due to the impact of global financial crisis, there was
a drop in demand from European and American customers towards
MLCC products. Since the fourth quarter, the Group appropriately
aligned its target market to the Mainland China, where the impact
of financial tsunami to its economic growth was relatively small, and
enhanced its sales effort there, with an aim to minimize the negative
impact of global economic recession towards the Group's MLCC
business. At the same time, the competitive strength of the Group was
enhanced through our technological advancement in MLCC business
and optimization of product portfolio. In 2008, the Group’s MLCC
business recorded a relatively satisfactory result with gross margin as
well as gross margin ratio increased over that of 2007 while the sales
revenue raised approximately 5% despite the general recession. Net
profit after tax also experienced a rise.
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Mobile phone business is another principal line of business of the
Group. Its sales are mainly made domestically. In 2008, as affected
by the financial tsunami, the already excessive competition in
mobile phone market was further intensified. Therefore, the result of
Group's mobile phone business declined by a certain extent when
compared to 2007. Sales revenue, gross margin and gross margin
ratio all experienced decreases and it is expected that the situation
would be hard to reverse in the forthcoming year. The Board of the
Company will optimize the Group's operation efficiency and structure,
when appropriate, to create a better return for the Group and the
shareholders.

Market consensus is that China will recover earlier than the three
biggest economies, namely United States of America, Europe and
Japan in 2009, RMB will further appreciate against the world’s major
currencies and uncertainty of market will further increase over that
of 2008. However, despite the fierce competition, the Group can still
manage to obtain the feedback of MLCC demand information quicker
than its competitors of other areas as the Group is based in Pearl River
Delta, one of the world’s major electronic products processing centres,
which brings more opportunities but higher pressure as well as various
challenges for the Group to develop its MLCC business and improve its
results.

Mobile phones market continues to face fierce competition. The
Chinese government launched “Home Appliances Subsidy Policy for
Rural Villages”, which is an energizer for the market segment with the
largest potential in China (i.e. rural market) and stimulates the domestic
demand in China. The growth of our mobile phone related business
will be benefited from this. Yet, with the impact of financial tsunami,
the disposable income of migrant workers will decrease substantially as
the unemployment rate of migrant workers increases, which will cause
greater pressure on selling price and gross margin of the Company’s
products. The Board will consider optimizing the Group'’s operation in
mobile phone related business when appropriate, taking into account
of market trend, to create a better return for the Group and the
shareholders.

I would also like to take this opportunity to thank all of our customers
and shareholders for their continuing support, our directors for their
guidance and insights, as well as our staff for their dedication and
efforts.

Chairman
Chen Weirong

24 April 2009
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The financial tsunami in 2008 overwhelmed the global economy, the
three big economies, namely the USA, Europe and Japan, together
turned into recession. Since ultimate clients of the Group’s MLCC
business are mainly located in the United States and European markets,
the demand from the Group's clients decreased starting from the
fourth quarter of 2008. With the significant depreciation of Korean
Won against United States dollars, Euro, Japanese Yen and RMB,
and appreciation of RMB against all major currencies, South Korean
counterparts enjoy a comparative price advantage, and hence sales
of the Group’s MLCC products are under substantial pressure. The
Group managed to minimize the negative impact of global economic
recession on the Group's MLCC business through our technological
advancement in MLCC business, optimization of product portfolio
as well as since the forth quarter of 2008 appropriately re-aligning its
target market with the mainland China, where the impact of financial
tsunami to its economic growth was relatively small, and enhanced
its sales effort there. In 2008 the Group MLCC's sales increased by
approximately 5% against the depressing market and the related gross
margin ratio grew by 1 percentage point.

Mobile phone business is another principal business segment of the
Group with its sales mainly made in the PRC. In 2008, under the effect
of the financial tsunami, the already excessive competition in mobile
phone market was further intensified. Therefore, the results of the
Group’s mobile phone business declined by a certain extent when
compared to that in 2007.

PROSPECTS

Since the second and third quarter of 2008, the world'’s three biggest
economies, namely the USA, Europe and Japan slumped into a
recession respectively. Though these economies launched bailout
package with great efforts and intend to prevent their national
economy from going further downward through increasing the market
liquidity, yet the three biggest economies have not recovered so far
and sign of any positive outlook in the foreseeable future is still remote.
Instead, the risk of the three major economies going into stagflation
has been rising due to the deleveraging process in financial market and
the overflowing of market liquidity.

China’s financial industry is relatively closed-door, therefore the impact
from the financial tsunami to the financial industry of China is limited.
The major negative impact on China economy is reflected in the
decrease in import and export (especially the export and import of
third-party processing). Also, with the launch of RMB4 trillion economic
stimulation package by Chinese government for boosting the
economy through investment and the adjusted direction of monetary
policies from tightened monetary policies to more relaxed monetary
policies, China economy appeared to have bottomed out and started
to recover in the first quarter of 2009.
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In the coming year, it is expected that RMB against the world’s major
currencies will still have certain extent of appreciation. At the same
time, the financial tsunami has prompted corporations to be more
cautious about investment, purchase, production and sales planning. It
is expected that purchase orders continue to require a shorter delivery
time. This situation will bring challenges to the Group's operation.

As the principal businesses of the Group are located in the PRC, the
macro-economic landscape of the PRC will have a greater impact on
the operating results of the Group. It is expected that in 2009 China
will walk out of the bottom earlier than the three big economies,
namely the USA, Europe and Japan. Besides, despite the existence of
fierce competition, the Group can still manage to obtain the feedback
of MLCC demand information quicker than its competitors of other
areas as the Group is based in Pearl River Delta, one of the world’s
major electronic products processing center, which brings more
opportunities for the Group to develop its MLCC business and improve
its results.

In the coming year, the Group faces more opportunities than
challenges, and this is an excellent time for the Group to rapidly
increase its market share.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

MLCC BUSINESS

MLCC is a type of mini multi-layer ceramic capacitor which is a basic
electronic component that has been widely used in information
technology, communication and consumer electronic products.
In 2008, the revenue of the MLCC business of the Group was
approximately RMB232.6 million, representing an increase of about 5%
from that of 2007. The gross margin grew by approximately 10.1% from
that of 2007 to approximately RMB70.3 million. The gross margin ratio
increased by approximately 1 percentage point against that of 2007 to
approximately 30.2%.

Compared to 2007, the Group's gross margin from the MLCC business
and gross margin ratio increased in 2008 thanks to the advancement of
technology innovations and realignment of product portfolio.

FHEZR (RE) BRAF « —BFN\FER
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MOBILE PHONE BUSINESS

In 2008, the revenue of the mobile phone business of the Group
decreased by approximately 10.6% to approximately RMB545.2
million and the gross margin dropped by approximately 59.4% to
approximately RMB27.9 million respectively. The gross margin ratio was
approximately 5.1%, representing a decrease of about 6 percentage
points as compared to that of 2007.

The Group's mobile phone business is mainly for sales in the PRC. The
decrease in the revenue generated from mobile phone business in
2008 was mainly attributable to the impact of financial tsunami and
over-competition in the PRC market. The drop of the Group’s gross
margin and gross margin ratio of the mobile phone business was due
to the reduction of product selling prices so as to address the issues of
fierce market competition.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As detailed above, in 2008 the Group’s MLCC revenue grew by
approximately 5% over that of 2007, and both the gross margin and
gross margin ratio of the Group's MLCC business in 2008 had increased
over that of 2007. Sales revenue from mobile phone business declined
with gross margin and gross margin ratio dropping in tandem. The
profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2008 was approximately RMB11.3 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 83.5% as compared to that
in 2007. The earnings per share were approximately RMB2.8 cents,
representing a decrease of approximately 87.6% as compared with that
in 2007.

GEARING RATIO

The Group monitors working capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as the sum
of bank loans, trade and bills payables, and other payables (excluding
accruals and deferred income within one year) less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable to the equity holders
of the parent. As at 31 December 2007 and 2008, the gearing ratio was
nil and approximately 23%, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The property, plant and equipment of the Group mainly comprised
of buildings, plant and machinery, office and other equipment, motor
vehicles and construction in progress. The net book value as at 31
December 2007 and 2008 were approximately RMB171.5 million and
RMB257.7 million respectively. The increase in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the current year was mainly due to the
increase in the purchase of relevant research and production facilities
for the development and expansion of its production capacity for its
MLCC business and the construction of the headquarters in Shenzhen
Hi-Tech Industrial Park.
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INVENTORIES

The inventories of the Group mainly comprised of raw materials for
the production of the MLCC and mobile phones, work in progress
and finished products. As at 31 December 2007 and 2008, the Group
recorded a net book value of inventory of approximately RMB75.5
million and RMB111.6 million respectively. The increase in the inventory
balance of the Group was mainly due to the increase in production
capacity of MLCC, which in turn increase normal inventory for
production and sales.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The trade receivables of the Group were mainly due from the Group's
MLCC and mobile phone customers. As at 31 December 2007 and
2008, the net book value of trade receivables were approximately
RMB117.3 million and RMB95.5 million respectively. The decrease in
trade receivables was mainly because revenue dropped in the fourth
quarter of 2008. Also, given that fact that the Group expected the
risk associated with customers’ payment would increase, the Group
adopted a “delivery upon payment” policy for those customers (mainly
for mobile phone customers) whose credit risk could not be lowered
through other effective measures so as to minimize the Group’s
exposure to the risk of default payment.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The trade and bills payables of the Group were mainly due to the
suppliers of the Group. As at 31 December 2007 and 2008, the net book
value of trade and bills payables were approximately RMB138.2 million
and RMB161.2 million respectively. The increase in the trade and bills
payables of the Group was mainly because the Group had purchased
more raw materials for its MLCC production to satisfy the expansion
of production capacity in order to cope with the potential increase in
MLCC sales as well as the extension of settlement period.

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE

The effective tax rates of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2007 and 2008 were approximately 8% and 48% respectively. The
substantial increase in the effective tax rate was mainly due to (1) the
losses of the Company and its subsidiaries Shenzhen Eycom and Hong
Kong Eyang Holdings (Group) Co., Limited for the current year, (2) the
increase in Corporate Income Tax rate for Shenzhen Eyang from 7.5%
to 15%; (3) Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between China and jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. Deferred tax liability is provided for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of the Group’s subsidiaries.

FHEZR (RE) BRAF « —BFN\FER
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BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had outstanding borrowings of
approximately RMB42 million, all of which were secured bank loans. All
the outstanding borrowings are repayable within one year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2008, the Group pledged its certain property, plant
and equipment with net book value of approximately RMB75.4 million
and bank deposits of approximately RMB49.9 million to secure the
interest-bearing bank loans and issuance of bills payable and letter of
credit.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2008, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2008, the capital commitments of the Group
were approximately RMB11.2 million. The capital commitments of
the Group decreased from approximately RMB25.2 million in 2007
to approximately RMB11.2 million in 2008, which was mainly due to
the decrease in the purchase of equipment which had not yet been
delivered.

Apart from trade and bills payables and bank loans as disclosed
above and intra-group liabilities, the Group did not have any other
outstanding indebtedness, nor any outstanding loan capital issued and
not redeemed or agreed to be issued, bank overdrafts, loans or similar
indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances (other than normal trade
bills), acceptance credits, debentures, mortgages, charges, finance
leases or hire purchases commitments, guarantees or other contingent
liabilities outstanding as at 31 December 2008.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Net current asset

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB103.3 million, including current assets of
approximately RMB386.0 million and current liabilities of approximately
RMB282.7 million.

17



EEENWE D

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RERE

Cash flows

BE+-A=+—HLFE

For the year ended
31 December
2008
—E2ENFE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
RESEEN T AMIR S F 58 Net cash inflow from operating activities 67,522 60,540
WEEERHE IR S F 5 Net cash outflow from investing activities (120,309) (49,708)
BMEEBCRE),HAR Net cash (outflow)/inflow
IREEEE from Financing activities (23,995) 74,341
FRMIBE RIRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 131,705 210,334

HZE2008F12A3BILFE  EEKLEEEHIR
SERABHOARB/sAEETL BE—FF
FRAOARE/BEEL TERAAESRER
BH - SEBEHBLIREONKEKREE AR
5 ARERKERRRE  HREE—TEUK
BT X RERIB A M F R MR RS (£
ERFERF )R EWREEE INHEER
Eﬁ °

HE2008F12A31HIEFE - SEREETHH
BEFEREEHARE12038E T 820074
EREFREZHNRSFREOBHOARE478
ETEMHARB06EBET  TEZANEER
5 EEEITAIE AR TR T3 -

HZE2008F12A31HIEFE - £EEREETHH
BEEREBEAOBARBA0BET  TEARN
2007 FERIRL B, ©

RITRE
HE2008F12A31HIEFE » KEEMRITE
CHRBEANBAREI05IBET  ERHARE
948BEEITTWARIER o

INEE

ZN£2 B A 2008 4F [ #)34% ) $5 & K8 K 4942% Y ER
BBEUAETMETIE - AEEHIMNER S E
AN [EREBRE o

ET

HZE2008F12A831H EEHH1856KE T -
M TEMBANATE « BRBEEREREAR
BE °

18

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group's net cash inflow
from operating activities increased approximately RMB7.0 million over
that of 2007 to approximately RMB67.5 million, which was mainly due
to the fact that during the financial tsunami, the Group expected the
risk associated with customers’ payment would increase, the Group
adopted a “delivery upon payment” policy for those customers (mainly
for mobile phone customers) whose credit risk could not be lowered
through other effective measures so as to minimize the Group'’s
exposure to the risk of default payment.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group's net cash outflow
from investing activities increased by approximately RMB70.6 million
from approximately RMB49.7 million in 2007 to approximately
RMB120.3 million, which was mainly used in purchasing equipments,
constructing headquarter and acquiring the land in Chuzhou, Auhui.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group’s net cash outflow
from financing activities was approximately RMB24.0 million, which was
mainly used in payment of dividends for the year ended 31 December
2007.

Banking facilities

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group had aggregate
banking facilities of approximately RMB105.1 million, of which
approximately RMB94.8 million had not been utilised.

Foreign exchange

In 2008, approximately 34% of the Group’s sales and approximately
42% of purchase were denominated in US dollars and Hong Kong
dollars. The Group's foreign currencies account is basically balance and
its foreign currencies risk is relative small.

STAFF

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had a total of 1,856 staff, whose
remuneration and benefits are determined based on market, state
policies and individual performance.

FHER (£E) BRAF « Z22N\FER
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The Company has adopted the code on Corporate Governance to
ensure its accountability and integrity. The Company has devised
the code by incorporating the applicable code provisions of the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code") contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), The code has serves as the frameworks in which the
company'’s policies and practices are formulated so that a high level
of corporate governance can be maintained. The Company believes
that good corporate governance can enhance shareholders’ value and
confidence of other stakeholders like prospective investors.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company and considers that the Company has complied with the CG
Code during the year ended 31 December 2008, save for the exception
that is stated and explained below. Given the ever changing business
and operation environments, the Company considers it essential to
review its corporate governance code and practices from time to time
in order to cope with the latest developments.

THE BOARD

Composition of the Board and directors’ background

The Board is entrusted with the duties of promoting the Company’s
success through high standard of planning, management and control.
Members of the Board provide the Company with valuable experience,
knowledge and professionalism. The Board includes three Independent
Non-executive Directors who bring in independent judgment and
advices which serve the purpose of check and balance. One of the
three Independent Non-executive Directors possesses the necessary
professional qualification and expertise in accounting and financial
management and he also serves as the chairman of the Company’s
audit committee.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 3 Executive Directors,
4 Non-executive Directors, and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors.
The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 7 to 10 of
this annual report. The composition of the Board and the Committees
of the Board are given below:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
member of Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee)
Ms. Shuang Mei (member of Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Liao Jie

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Li Hegiu

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Mr. Chen Hao
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Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman of Audit Committee,
member of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)
Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman of both Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee and member of Audit Committee)
Mr. Pan Wei (member of Remuneration Committee)

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship among the Directors. Pursuant to the Listing Rules 3.13,
each of the three Independent Non-executive Directors has submitted
an annual written confirmation of his independence to the Company
and it still considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

Responsibilities

The tasks of the Board include setting main objectives of the Group
and devising strategic planning for the development of the Group'’s
two major business segments namely MLCC and mobile phones. The
Board also defines the corporate values and standards to ensure that
the management and all other staff carry out their works in good faith
and in the best interest of shareholders. Significant company’s activities
like acquisition and disposal transactions, connected transactions,
investments and capital expenditures are thoroughly discussed in
Board and other committee meetings with contribution from the
Independent Non-executive directors.

Duties of daily operation and execution of the Group’s plans have been
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management and
the Board constantly supervises the management and monitors their
performance in meeting the preset goals and objectives.

Appointments and Re-election of Directors

The Article of Association of the Company requires that at least one-
third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation at each general meeting provided that every director shall
be subject to retirement at an Annual General Meeting at least
once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election at the Annual General Meeting. All non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors) of the Company
have been appointed for a term of three years from the date of their
appointments. Upon every expiry of their terms, the appointment
would be renewed for a term of three years.

FHEZR (RE) BRAF « —BFN\FER
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Mr. Zhang Zhilin
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Board Meeting

Regular board meetings are held for Directors to discuss and determine
the strategies of the Group, monitor the execution of plans, review
the Group's business performance and financial reporting as well as all
other material matters. Notice of the Board meeting is given at 14 days
in advance to all Directors, and the agenda of all related document are
prepared and dispatched to all Directors by the Company Secretary
at least 3 days before the meeting. All Directors have full access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary for ensuring that the
Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
Details of Directors’ attendance at the meetings of Board, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2008 are set out below:

HEEERE
BE-EEN\F+-A=+—-HLFE
Attendance/Number of meetings
for the year ended 31 December 2008

ERZERS FMESS REZE®
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
8/8 TE 11 (B&E)
Not applicable (Note)
8/8 ANiE B 1/1 AiE B
Not applicable Not applicable
5/8 TEA TiEM TiEMA
Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
4/8 TiEMA TiEM TiEA
Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
2/8 N iE A i A NEmM
Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
2/8 NiE A i A NER
Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
4/8 NiE R NE A NER
Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
3/8 2/2 1/1 AiE R
Not applicable
3/8 2/2 1/1 (BzE)
(Note)
3/8 2/2 0/1 (B&E)
(Note)

(Note) No meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2008.
2]
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company does not have a separate Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer and Mr. Chen Weirong currently holds both positions. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer in the same person provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership, allows for more effective planning and
execution of long-term business strategies and enhances the efficiency
of decision-making process in response to the changing environment.

The three Independent Non-executive Directors provide the Board
with independent judgment and views from different perspectives
and ensure that the interests of concerned parties can be taken
into account and proper processes are followed to avoid possible
conflict of interests. The Board therefore believes that the Company
already has a adequate corporate governance structure in place with
appropriate check and balances. The Board from time to time reviews
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s corporate governance
structure and performance so as to assess whether any changes are
necessary.

Model Code for Dealing in Securities by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct governing securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than that required
under the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of each Director of the Board, all
Directors confirm that they have fully complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2008.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of accounts
for each financial period with a view to ensuring such accounts give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flow for that period. The Company's accounts are prepared
in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
and that judgment and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 37 to 38 of this annual report.

FHEZR (RE) BRAF « —BFN\FER
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Services rendered
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young are primarily responsible for providing audit services in
connection with the annual consolidated financial statements. During
the year, the total remuneration payable to the Company’s external
auditor amounted to RMB1.08 million, with breakdown as follows:

Fee paid/payable
Bt &R

Audit services

ZERH

Non-audit services

IR

Total
@t

BEREES
BERZEEH-RBYIIFRTESENR - IR
REREE(BREEGIE)  ARELELIR
WIthk -

ERRZBEZETERBE /WA ARRZMBR
REPBRETHRRERARR] 2P HER
AF R AREEER o

REE2008F12A31HILFERN  BREES
KEARAMASERITTBEERRSE - U5
BHREEHER BEARE 2 NI EEE KR
B ERIE 2 Ry - A REHZEINE
ZERD c BREESMEEE - R - BHESXH
BRINEZEBM AT HEEESYEFTEER - K
EEHZE2008F12ABILFEZFEEED
EEZZEDm - BERUE -

W EAEA A H AR R FEL LRI BREASR
B2 EHRIEAAEEAERTHAREE -

FHEES

HNE 8 ER 2007511 A30B K © AMBH
TEE(AIREREERTFERILLT) R=28L
FRTER(AFHEE S EFRMW AL - &
BARERKBERIE)HEMK
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RMB1.08 million
AR 08HETT
nil

e

AR

RMB1.08 million
ARBE108EETT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Pan Wei and Mr. Liu Huanbin.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to review the financial
statements and financial and accounting policies of the Company and
oversee the Company's financial reporting system and internal control
procedures.

During the year ended 31 December 2008 the Audit Committee met
twice and reviewed the financial results and reports, financial reporting
and compliance procedures, report of internal audit department on the
Company's internal control and risk management review and processes
and the re-appointment of the external auditors. The Audit Committee
has not taken a different view from the Board regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors. The
Group's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2008 have
been discussed,reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was set up on 30 November 2007,
constituted by two executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Weirong
and Ms. Shuang Mei and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee),
Mr. Pan Wei and Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus.
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The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration
packages.

The Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration of
the Directors and senior management with reference to the skill,
knowledge, experience and the tasks assigned and also to the
individual performance and the overall profitability of the Company. In
determining the remuneration package, the Remuneration Committee
also obtained reports, surveys and relevant information from external
source for the competitive level of remuneration and market trend
for the Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee regards that the current Directors’ fee to the Directors
and remuneration to the senior management for their duties and
responsibilities undertaken are commensurate with the market.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

In April 2008 the Company set up the Nomination Committee,
comprising two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Liu Huanbin and Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, and Executive Director Mr.
Chen Weirong, whose major duties are to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
according to the Articles of Association. The Nomination Committee
reviews the composition of the Board whenever necessary to meet the
business demands, opportunities and challenges and to comply with
the relevant laws and regulations. The Nomination Committee will
select and evaluate the balance of skills, qualification, knowledge and
experience of the candidate to the directorship as may be required by
the Company from time to time by such means as the Company may
deems fit. The Nomination Committee shall consider the candidate
from a wide range of backgrounds, on his/her merits and against
objective criteria set out by the Board and taking into consideration his/
her time devoted to the position and independence as Independent
Non-executive directors.

All newly appointed Director will be provided an induction so as to
ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and of the responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company maintains a comprehensive and effective internal
control system on income, capital and revenue expenditures. The
Company had conducted a review on the internal financial and
operational process, which formed the basis on which remedies and
improvements were made. As part of internal audit, the Company has
its own internal audit department and maintained a system of internal
control, with manuals guiding internal controls on business operation.
The Company will review the internal controls manuals from time to
time to meet with the changing business operation environment.
Internal controls report was submitted to the Audit Committee for
review.

The Internal Audit Manager, who is independent of the Company'’s
daily operations, reports directly to the Audit Committee and Chief
Executive Officer and regularly conducts audits of the practices,
procedures, expenditures and internal control.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted the policy of effective communication with
shareholders for promoting higher transparency of the Company's
operation activities and greater investors’ understanding of the
Company'’s business. The Company’s website contains up-to-date
information on the Company’s business developments. The practice
of timely disclosures of information with high degree of integrity is
consistently observed to allow shareholders and any other parties
concerned to make judgment.

Given the fact that the annual general meeting and other general
meetings are the most important platform for shareholders to express
their views and ask questions about the performance and policies
of the Company, notices and circular regarding the annual general
meeting and other general meetings are given in well advance to
ensure that shareholders have sufficient time and information to
prepare for the meetings.
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The Board is pleased to present the report for the year ended
31 December 2008, together with its audited financial statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
activities of its subsidiaries are set in note 17 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 39.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 27 May
2009, Wednesday to 1 June 2009, Monday (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected.

In order to qualify for attending and voting at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, all share transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 26 May 2009, Tuesday.

RESERVES
Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to Article 34 of the Cayman Islands Companies Law (as
revised) and subject to the articles of association of the Company, the
share premium may be distributed to its shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its liabilities
due in the course of ordinary business. In the opinion of the directors,
the Company’s reserves available for distribution as at 31 December
2008 were approximately RMB61,905,000.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and fixed assets
of the Company are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The current directors of the Company during the year and as of the
date of the report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Shuang Mei

Mr. Liao Jie

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Hao

Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Li Hegiu

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Liu Huanbin

In accordance with article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Chen Hao, Mr. Cheng Wusheng and Mr. Pan Wei will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Directors

Each executive director entered into the service contract with the
Company on 30 November 2007 for a term of 3 years from the Listing
Date, renewable thereafter until termination by giving no less than 3
months’ written notice to the other party or pursuant to the terms of
the service contract.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors

All' Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
have entered into a letter of engagement with the Company for a term
of 3 years from the Listing Date. The engagement shall comply with
the directors’ retirement and rotation provisions in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association.
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Save as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is expiring within one year
or determinable by the employer within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation). The Company
has no service contract with the Directors with a term of more than 3
years or not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s Directors is determined
based on their respective terms of service agreement (if any). The
Directors’ fee is reviewed annually and approved and authorized by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting. Details of remuneration
paid and to be paid to the Company’s Directors for the financial
year ended 31 December 2008 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
Save for the connected transactions as stated in the report, no
contracts of significance relating to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principles and practices of corporate governance of the Company is
set out under the section of “Corporate Governance Report” from page
19 to page 25 in the report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders of the
Company.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The biographies of Directors and senior management are set out on
page 7 to page 10 in the report.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2008, the interests or short positions of the
directors and the chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations, within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO”"),
which had to be notified to the Company and the The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or which would be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein or which would be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), are as follows:

REAR/
T
BAED
B
XA,/ BA&/#E Approximate
HRZEEH TR AHE REE percentage of
Company/ Amountofshare  RHHIELS* interest in
Name of B/ B capital/  Interestsin the Company/
EERE associated Capacity/ registered underlying gy associated
Name of Director corporation Nature of interest capital held shares * Total  corporations
(%)
REREE YN el
s
Mr. Chen Weirong Company Interest of controlled
corporations @ 262,020,000 1,400,000 263,420,000 64.96%
Rt VYN NElEm @
Ms. Shuang Mei Company Corporate interest @ 9,160,000 1,300,000 10,460,000 2.58%
BHELE AYNS] NAlfEs O
Mr. Liao Jie Company Corporate interest @ 7,160,000 1,300,000 8,460,000 2.09%
BRERE NS /NGl SR
Mr. Cheng Wusheng Company Corporate interest @ 16,160,000 - 16,160,000 3.99%
RIS RAT] AElEm O
Mr. Li Hegiu Company Corporate interest ~ © 20,800,000 = 20,800,000 5.13%
REMTE RR7] NAlEs O
Mr. Zhang Zhilin Company Corporate interest ~ © 23,120,000 = 23,120,000 5.70%

* RGO NESRRZEN2008F1 A2 BRER *
2007411 A30 8 T MM BB AR BERT Bl T B 1T BB IR
W BRAFFIEE TIEAA EARERT & — &R -

Interests in the underlying shares represent interests in share options granted on
22 January 2008 pursuant to the Share Option Scheme adopted on 30 November
2007, further details of which are set out in section “Share Option Scheme”.

SERN\EEH e FHER (RE) BRAF 29
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M%Elﬁﬁfﬁ%%‘ﬁ‘mza 20,0008% A% 5 °
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Notes:

Save

Mr. Chen Weirong legally owns 100% of the issued share capital of Eversharp
Management Limited, which in turn legally owns 42.71% of the issued share capital
of EY SHINE Management Limited (‘EY Shine”). Mr. Chen Weirong also legally owns
100% of the issued share capital of Everbright Management Limited, which owns
36.01% of the issued share capital of EY Shine. EY Shine legally owns 60.31% of EY
Ocean. For the purposes of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Chen Weirong is deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by EY Ocean.

Ms. Shuang Mei legally owns 100% of the issued share capital of HE-YANG
Management Limited, which in turn legally owns 5.79% of the issued share capital
of EY Shine. EY Shine legally owns 60.31% of EY Ocean. Ms. Shuang Mei therefore is
indirectly interested in approximately 9,160,000 shares.

Mr. Liao Jie legally owns 100% of the issued share capital of LJ Management
Limited, which in tumn legally owns 4.53% of the issued share capital of EY Shine. EY
Shine legally owns 60.31% of EY Ocean. Mr. Liao Jie therefore is indirectly interested
in approximately 7,160,000 shares.

Mr. Cheng Wusheng legally owns 100% of the issued share capital of WUSHENG
Management Limited, which in turn legally owns 6.17% of the issued share capital
of EY Ocean. Mr. Cheng Wusheng therefore is indirectly interested in approximately
16,160,000 shares.

Mr. Li Hegiu legally owns 100% of the issued share capital of HEQ Management
Limited, which own 7.94% of the issued share capital of EY Ocean. Mr. Li Heqiu
therefore is indirectly interested in approximately 20,800,000 shares.

Mr. Zhang Zhilin legally owns 100% of the issued share capital of ZHILIN
Management Limited, which in turn legally owns 8.82% of the issued share capital
of EY Ocean. Mr. Zhang Zhilin therefore is indirectly interested in approximately
23,120,000 shares.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the directors

or chief executive (including their respective spouse and children
under the age of 18) or their respective associates had an interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures the
Company or its subsidiaries or any of its associated corporations, which
was required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules.

FHEZR (RE) BRAF « —BFN\FEH
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

The persons who have an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or who are, directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote

FERROROER

PN/ TM%@&W@%@#%E%@%M%&

BB M EEXVER S 2 K B3 BRI S [l AN A

ERHBENERIARE &E%%ﬁ%%ﬁm

ﬁﬁﬂTFEﬂlﬂTE$ AR E ALK B
NAMRE RS ERE AR RIAANTEE 10%

A ERATIAT

in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the

Company are as follows:

BRE
BHBEI
R4 EE Approximate
=200 Number of percentage of
Capacity Shares share holding
BEmEAA
EY Ocean Beneficial owner 262,020,000 64.62%
R—EES R RIE RO
EY SHINE Management Limited In t rest of a controlled corporation @ 262,020,000 64.62%
—fEE S A R B RR @
Eversharp Management Limited | t rest of a controlled corporation @ 262,020,000 64.62%
— RS A R E R O
Everbright Management Limited Interest of a controlled corporation ® 262,020,000 64.62%
BRIZER R — A A R e RS @
Chen Weirong Interest of a controlled corporation @ 262,020,000 64.62%
BEmEAA
Legend New-Tech Investment Beneficial owner 26,920,000 6.64%
Limited
—fEEH AR ER
Right Lane Limited Interest of a controlled corporation © 26,920,000 6.64%
B AR B R A A —ME AR BisEte
(Legend Holding Limited*) Interest of a controlled corporation/
Beneﬁciary of trusts © 26,920,000 6.64%
HERIERE A EE — RS A R E RS ©
REBR QT
(Chinese Academy Interest of a controlled corporation © 26,920,000 6.64%
of Sciences Holdings Co., Ltd.*)
ERBIERR B R AR IR S — S AR E RO
(Employees’ Shareholding Interest of a controlled corporation © 26,920,000 6.64%
Society of Legend
Holding Limited*)
* (EREF *  Foridentification purposes only
—ER/EFH  FHER (EE) GRAT 31

Annual Report 2008 ® EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED



EEERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Wi

(1) EY SHINE Management Limited ([EY Shine |) #BEY Ocean
BBITIRALI6031% Mz - RATRERRAGITEK
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Shine B B 1TRRARAY4271% 5 + RATNERR AT
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Shine B B 1TAR AR 4736.01% 4 + AN ERR AT
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AR BHEAEY Oceants B KIFT A IR (D #E A o
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(5)  Right Lane Limited & %A Legend New-Tech Investment
K22 BTARAN - Right Lane Limited A M £ 4R BB
Legend New-Tech Investment Limited+ 4 /I BT 8 B 15 42

(6) EHBIEIRAER A R ARight Lane Limited 2 2B E B 1 TA%
REHE R o BHBIEAR AR A R4 #EARight Lane Limited
B EITIRA50% + IMERMIEEFEE 2= B A Right Lane
Limited B 3 1T B AN & T~ 50% © Liu Chuanzhi fE & R &
Legend Holding Limited 8915 7€ A A Right Lane Limited
B 817 IR AN 25% ° 5 18 £ {F /3 X X Legend Holding
Limited & {5 5€ A £F B Right Lane Limited B % 17 & 2
25% ° Bp B IEIR AR AR R BRI ZRBEE EEL LR
RAREASH KB EERERAFBISREHS
35% °
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Notes:

(1) EY SHINE Management Limited ("EY Shine”) is interested in approximately 60.31% of
the issued capital of EY Ocean and is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
one-third or more of the voting power at its general meeting. EY Shine is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by EY Ocean.

(2)  Eversharp Management Limited ("Eversharp”) is interested in approximately 42.71%
of the issued capital of EY Shine and is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
one-third or more of the voting power at its general meeting. Eversharp is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by EY Ocean.

(3)  Everbright Management Limited (“Everbright”) is interested in approximately
36.01% of the issued capital of EY Shine and is entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at its general meeting. Everbright
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by EY Ocean.

(4)  Mr. Chen Weirong legally owns the entire issued share capital of Eversharp and the
entire issued share capital of Everbright. Mr. Chen Weirong is therefore deemed to
be interested in all the Shares held by EY Ocean.

(5)  Right Lane Limited legally owns the entire issued share capital of Legend New-Tech
Investment Limited. Right Lane Limited is therefore deemed to be interested in all
the Shares held by Legend New-Tech Investment Limited.

(6) EtABIERRAMR AT (Legend Holding Limited*) is interested in the entire issued
share capital of Right Lane Limited. B #8458 B BR A 7] (Legend Holding Limited™)
legally owns 50% of the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited and also owns
the remaining 50% the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited as a beneficiary
of two trusts. Liu Chuanzhi is holding 25% of the issued share capital of Right Lane
Limited as a trustee for and on behalf of Legend Holding Limited. Zhang Zuxiang
is holding 25% of the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited as a trustee for
and on behalf of Legend Holding Limited. B$A812 A% AR A & (Legend Holding
Limited*) is owned as to 65% by Fr BRI Bz A EEL DB R A7l (Chinese
Academy of Sciences Holdings Co., Ltd*) and 35% by HsA8 122 % A5 R A &5 T %
A% & (Employees' Shareholding Society of Legend Holding Limited*).

Save as disclosed above, so far as known to the Directors or Chief
Executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2008, no other person
who was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Company, or being any person who is required to disclose his interest
or short position in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to the written
resolutions passed by all shareholders of the Company on 30
November 2007. Summaries of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements..

* For identification purposes only
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Rtz ERE Options granted

H 2200812 A31 B IEFE H840,000,000088  During the year ended 31 December 2008, 40,000,000 share options
R FEAR I BB AR RE ST 2 G M M2 E A B2 were granted to eligible participants pursuant to the terms of the Share
HERY - MEAZE20085F 12831 1E3Z L2  Option Scheme and the details of movement of the granted share

A EEAR R BN T ¢ options up to 31 December 2008 were as follows:
R2008 2008
1A18 12A318
WRITHR REH REH REH REE  EEROR
LERSHE Outstanding b AT AR Astss Outstanding
th%BNER SRAEE asat  Granted  Exercised  Forfeited  Cancelled asat fTies
Name or category of RLAH Exercise price  1January during during during during 31December  Exercise
eligible participants Date of grant per share 2008 theperiod theperiod theperiod the period 2008
£
Directors
RERLE 20081 A2A 105087 - 1400000 - - - 1400000 FitzE(a)
Mr.Chen Weirong 22 January 2008 HKS1.052 Note(@)
Rifat 20081 A2A 10507 - 1300000 - - - 1300000 i)
Ms. Shuang Mei 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 Note(a)
Bt 20081 A2H 105387 - 1300000 - - - 1300000 LRI
Mr. Liao Jie 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 Note(a)
gt
Sub-total 4,000,000 4000000
BREBAS
EERHM
RERSRE
() 20081 A2H 105087 - 36000000 - 6400000 600000 29000000 i)
Senior management,
Employees and
Other qualifying
participants (in aggregate) 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 Note(a)
&y
Total 40,000,000 = 6,400,000 600,000 33,000,000
@ FIEBRLHEMBEERERA M0 - (@  Please refer to note 30 to the financial statements for details.
ZEENFFR - FHEE () BRAF 33
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Other than the above share option scheme, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or the holding companies of
the Company or any subsidiaries of its holdings companies a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
The Company'’s Directors had no interests in any business that may
compete with the Group's business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has confirmed
that it has maintained a sufficient public float in the market as at the
date of the report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed shares of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2008.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had no contract entered into in respect
of the management or administration of the overall business or any
material business.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company's securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year, the percentage of purchases from the major suppliers
of the Group to total purchases of the Group is as follow:

Percentage of purchases from

the largest supplier of the Group to total purchases: 14.5%
Percentage of purchases from
top five suppliers of the Group to total purchases 41.7%

No Directors nor their associates have interests in the above suppliers.

FIHER (KE) ERAAE « —BENFEH
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During the year, the percentage of sales from the major customers of
the Group to the total sales of goods and services of the Group is as
follows:

Percentage of sales from the largest customer of

the Group to total sales of goods and services 8.2%
Goods and services sold by the Group
to its top five customers during the year 23.5%

Neither Directors nor their associates have an interest in the customers
referred above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to 14A of the Listing Rules, non-exempt connected
transactions are subject to reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders” approval requirements. A waiver was granted to the
Company by the Stock Exchange from strict compliance with the
announcement and independent shareholders” approval requirements
with respect to the following continuing connected transactions:

SUPPLY AGREEMENT WITH GUANGTONG

Terms of the supply agreement

On 30 November 2007, Eycom entered into a supply agreement
with Guangtong, whereby Guangtong agreed to manufacture and
supply mobile phone casings to Eycom from time to time on normal
commercial terms which are no less favorable than those available
from Independent Third Parties. The supply agreement is effective from
the Listing Date to 31 December 2009.

The Directors have confirmed that the terms and conditions offered to
the Group by the Independent Suppliers and Guangtong are similar in
all material respects.

Proposed annual caps

The Directors estimate that the annual value of the transactions under
the supply agreement with Guangtong for each of the years ending 31
December 2009 are as follows:

BEt-A=1T—BLFE

For the year ended 31 December

Supply agreement
with Guangtong

—EBRLF —EENE T NF
2007 2008 2009
AREBETL AREBEERL ARKBEET
RMB million RMB million RMB million
20.0 33.3 417
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For the year ended 31 December 2008, the purchases of mobile phone
casings by the Group from Guangtong was approximately RMB19.9
million, representing approximately 52.2% of the total purchases of
mobile phone casings of the Group, as well as approximately 3.0% of
the total purchases of the Group. Such percentages do not exceed the
various caps as disclosed in antecedent announcements.

Pursuant to the Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and are of the opinion that the
above continuing connected transactions have been (i) carried out in
the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group; (ii) conducted
on normal commercial terms; and (i) entered into in accordance with
the terms of the respective agreements.

The Company’s auditor has also confirmed that the above-stated
continuing connected transactions (i) have been approved by the
Board of the Company; (ii) have been entered into on terms of the
agreement of relevant transactions; and (iii) have not exceeded any
caps as set out in the prospectus dated 11 December 2007.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO OF THE COMPANY

The net proceeds from the initial public offering and the subsequent
exercise of an over-allotment option received by the Company was
approximately HK$115 million.

As at 31 December 2008, approximately HK$65.3 million were used
in acquiring MLCC production facilities, HK$12.0 million in enhancing
MLCC Research and development capability and HKS$6.7 million in
marketing and sale of “EY” brand mobile phones, HK$1.0 million in IT
infrastructure and HK$2.0 million as working capital. The balance of
the net proceeds will be used in accordance with the use of proceeds
as disclosed in the prospects dated 11 December 2007 and the
announcement dated 12 November 2008 of the Group..

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year are audited by Ernst & Young. The
auditor shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting, but
has agreed to offer themselves for re-appointment. According to the
advice of the Audit Committee, a resolution will be proposed to the
forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Ernst & Young as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Weirong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 April 2009

Floizk (EE) ARAF  ZEBNFER
EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED * Annual Report 2008
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To the shareholders of EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of EYANG Holdings
(Group) Co., Limited set out on pages 39 to 112, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2008 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre

8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong
24 April 2009

FHEZR (RE) BRAF « —BFN\FER
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REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Research and development costs
Other expenses

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Tax
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent

DIVIDENDS
Proposed final

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Basic

2007
ARETIT
RMB'000
834,608
(701,641)

132,967

3,554

68,433

22.6 {llicents
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

R=ZFZF)\F+=H=+—H 31 December 2008
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Notes 2008 2007
ARET T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
E e Property, plant and equipment 14 257,730 171,490
KEME Investment properties 15 10,345 3,700
THAETAN TR Land lease prepayments 16 22,293 10,708
RIEFHIBE = Deferred tax assets 18 1,039 1,807
EMBEEBE Total non-current assets 291,407 187,705
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 19 111,552 75,467
FEUSE 5 BRFK Trade receivables 20 95,533 117,284
FENFRIE - e REMERFN  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 21 18,616 13,548
TESmMITA Derivative financial instruments 27 454 -
Re KBS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 22 109,925 188,812
EHERRITIER Pledged bank deposits 22 49,870 40,286
MEEERE Total current assets 385,950 435397
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FEATE 5 R M SRR Trade and bills payables 23 161,235 138,219
EIEU A ~ FEETFRIE N JEFZR Deferred income, accruals and other payables 24 50,825 34617
eI Tax payable 12,526 7,546
Rt \ Provisions 25 3,699 4,609
FTRIRITER Interest-bearing bank loans 28 41,993 40,479
FEAT AR B, Dividends payable 171 171
JEST A T M ROR Due to related parties 35(3) 12,210 1,391
mENBEEE Total current liabilities 282,659 227,032
RBEERE NET CURRENT ASSETS 103,291 208,365
EEHAERRBARE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 394,698 396,070
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FEIEL A Deferred income 26 5,080 7,995
REFIAEE Deferred tax liabilities 18 955 -
EmB B BB Total non-current liabilities 6,035 7,995
BEFE Net assets 388,663 388,075
X EQUITY
BARERSE AEMER Equity attributable to equity holders
of the parent
BEITARAR Issued capital 29 3,824 3,773
{1 Reserves 31(a) 384,839 364,027
FEk R HARR B Proposed final dividend 12 - 20,275
e Total equity 388,663 388,075
BRIZEE RiE
Chen Weirong Shuang Mei
EE EF
Director Director
40 FHER (5E) GRAT s —STN\FFR
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BLRRRRAARS

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

kft ERE EXRD K
B&T  RER it fifh RS YRR
Bx  share EHBH  Share Exchange BEEF  Proposed Bi  fER
Issued  premium Contributed  option fluctuation ~ Retained final @it Minority Total
capital  account  surplus  reserve  reserve  profits  dividend Total  interests equity
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBIO0O
(Bzho0) (W) (HEs0)
(note 29) (note31(@)  (note30)
At 1 January 2007 48 - 203536 - 20 243 - 204947 177 205124
Profit for the year - - - - - 68433 - 68433 - 68433
Issue of shares 943 121670 - - - - - 122613 - 122613
Capitalisation issue of shares 2782 (2782) - - - - - - - -
Listing expenses for listing of
new shares - (20626) - - - - - (20626) - (20626)
Acquisition of minority interests
(note 31 a)i) - - (2823) - - - - (283) (177) (3000
Dividends declared by the
subsidiaries (note 12) - - - - - (4500) - (4500) - (4500)
Proposed final 2007 dividend
(note 12) - - - - - (20275) 20275 - - -
Exchange realignment - - - - 31 - - 31 - 31
At 31 December 2007
and 1 January 2008 3773 98262* 200713 - B 64801 20015 388075 - 388075
Profit for the year - - - - - 1317 - 13 - 1317
Issuance of new shares upon
exercise of the Over-allotment
Option 51 6,395 - - - - - 6,446 - 6,446
Final 2007 divicend (note 12) - - - - - - (20275)  (20275) - (20275)
Equity-settled share option
amangements (note 30) - - - 4947 - - - 4947 - 4947
Share options cancelled - - - (168) - 168 - - - -
Exchange realignment - - - - (1847) - - (1847) - (1847)
At 31 December 2008 3824 104657* 200713* 4779 (1,596  76,286* - 388,663 - 388,663

(2007: RMB364,027,000) in the consolidated balance sheet.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB384,839,000




RETHEECHEERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R F B A Profit before tax

TR - Adjustments for:

BB Finance costs

RITFLEUA Bank interest income

HEWE - BEREREER Loss on disposal of items of property,
kit plant and equipment

NFEEE - F5E Fair value gains, net:
METAE-TREER Derivative instruments — transactions not

ARG qualifying as hedges

e Depreciation

T AR E TR FRIR I Amortisation of land lease prepayments

BB ZEEFURE, Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of
OREREE) trade receivables

H b U IBRE Impairment of other receivables

T ERES Provisions/(reversal of provisions) against
(BERE) slow-moving inventories

RERMD LMz EmAX Listing expenses for listing of existing shares

R E BRI Equity-settled share option expense

FE20Em),md (Increase)/decrease in inventories
FEWE ZBRFOR D, (38 hn) Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
TERIE - e REMBEUE  Increase in prepayments, deposits and other
& hn receivables
FEU—KMT B A R e — 1z Decrease in an amount due from a minority
DEIRRFKIE R shareholder of a subsidiary
JFEUR B8 3E 75 SRR Decrease in an amount due from a related party

JEME SRR MEMZIRIEIN  Increase in trade and bills payables
EIEU A - FEEHERIB M ELME  Increase/(decrease) in deferred income, accruals

RrEEg I, Clid) and other payables
BER D Decrease in provisions

FERAE T 2IAE I CRL) Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to
related parties
EEWACRLA),/ 80 (Decrease)/increase in deferred income

KEEEZRE Cash generated from operations
EHFE Interest received
EAREINIE Overseas taxes paid

REFTBEEZHSFRA Net cash inflow from operating activities

2007
ARETIT
RMB'000

74,456

3211
(956)

14,945
250

(88)
386

(2,809)
12,399

101,794

18,237
(64,553)

(5,739)
767
379

23,631

(4,499)
(4,478)

(442)
249

65,346
956
(5,762)

60,540




RERERER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HE_ZFZTN\F+=_A=1+—HLILFE Year ended 31 December 2008

fiax  =Z2NE
Notes 2008
AR¥T T
RMB’000
RETBEENRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEWE - WEREKEEE Purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment (108,190)
T EFE SR N Additions to land lease prepayments (12,119)
Weig DB R Acquisition of minority interests =
WEEBEEZRESF R Net cash outflow from investing activities (120,309)
RMETBEECZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BT AD 2 PS5k 1A Proceeds from issue of shares 6,639
EWRAX Listing expenses (193)
FEEt BIRITER New interest-bearing bank loans 95,214
EEFTERITERK Repayment of interest-bearing bank loans (93,701)
—ZRREEEK Repayment of an amount due from a shareholder -
SRS Interest paid (2,353)
EATIRE Dividends paid (20,275)
IR RITIF RIE A0 Increase in pledged bank deposits (12,290)
ERBARRAZHRAEA Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits with
38R 2 IRITER original maturity of over three months
A (38 hn) when acquired 2,964
BMEEHEACHESF Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing
GRLH),/A activities (23,995)
RERBRSEEYZ NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND
CR2) G hnEEE CASH EQUIVALENTS (76,782)
[ R Exchange realignment (1,847)
FUZBReRREEFEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 210,334
FEZASRATEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR 131,705
RERREESEYHERDIT  ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Be MIRTTHER Cash and bank balances 22 109,925
EBARRAZHATEIMEMA  Bank deposits with original maturity
ZRITIFRR of less than three months when acquired 22 21,780
131,705

“EERN\FFER e FHER (KE) GRAF
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2007
ARETIT
RMB'000

(46,708)

(3,000)
(49,708)
122,613
(32,0471)

50,000
(44,621)

2,784
(3211)

(4,329)
(14,300)

(2,554)

74,341

85,173
31
125,130

210,334

188,812

21,522

210,334
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2007

ARETIT
RMB'000

FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BB RF Property, plant and equipment 14 -
KRB AR Z2E Investments in subsidiaries 17 365,000
EREBEELE Total non-current assets 365,000
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
TEf B - e REMBEIEK  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 21 3478
B¢ MIRTTH R Cash and bank balances 22 103,950
FEUH B A B FUE Due from subsidiaries 17 -
BB EE Total current assets 107,428
ik p=Ki CURRENT LIABILITIES
HAh &< 50 K FE R T RIE Other payables and accruals 24 2,125
FER B A R F0E Due to subsidiaries 17 17,408
wrREaE Total current liabilities 19,533
ERBEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 87,895
FEE Net assets 452,895
s EQUITY
B EITIRAR Issued capital 29 3,773
& Reserves 31(b) 428,847
R R EAR% B Proposed final dividend 12 20,275
Bk Total equity 452,895

BREE bp=3
Chen Weirong Shuang Mei
EF EF

Director Director
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2007 F3HeHEREHERERNEHSE
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EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited (the "Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 March 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised). The Company'’s registered office is
located at the offices of Codon Trust Company (Cayman) Limited,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, and the head office and principal
place of business of the Company is located at 8th Floor, Tien Chu
Commercial Building, 173 = 174 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to these financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group'’s principal activities during
the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of EY OCEAN Management Limited
("EY OCEAN"), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
EY OCEAN is considered by the directors as the Company’s
ultimate holding company.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
which comprise standards and interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB"), and the
International Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations
Committee Interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Committee that remain in effect, and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for derivative financial instruments, which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi ("/RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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2.1

2.2
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2008.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All income, expenses and unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intercompany transactions and intercompany
balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders
not held by the Group in the results and net assets of the
Company’s subsidiaries.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new interpretations and
amendments to IFRSs for the first time for the current year's
financial statements. Except for in certain cases, giving rise to new
and revised accounting policies and additional disclosures, the
adoption of these new interpretations and amendments has had
no significant effect on these financial statements.

IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments:

Amendments Recognition and Measurement and IFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Reclassification of Financial Assets
IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
IFRIC 14 IAS 19— The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,

Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction

FHZR (KE) BRAF » —FTNFFR
EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO,, LIMITED ® Annual Report 2008
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
The principal effects of adopting these new and revised IFRSs are

as follows:

(@) Amendments to IAS 39 financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Reclassification of Financial Assets

The amendments to IAS 39 permit an entity to reclassify a
non-derivative financial asset classified as held for trading,
other than a financial asset designated by an entity as at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition,
out of the fair value through profit or loss category if the
financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term, if specified criteria are met.

A debt instrument that would have met the definition of
loans and receivables (if it had not been required to be
classified as held for trading at initial recognition) may be
classified out of the fair value through profit or loss category
or (if it had not been designated as available for sale) may be
classified out of the available-for-sale category to the loans
and receivables category if the entity has the intention and
ability to hold it for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

In rare circumstances, financial assets that are not eligible
for classification as loans and receivables may be transferred
from the held-for-trading category to the available-for-sale
category or to the held-to-maturity category (in the case of
a debt instrument), if the financial asset is no longer held for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

The financial asset shall be reclassified at its fair value on
the date of reclassification and the fair value of the financial
asset on the date of reclassification becomes its new cost
or amortised cost, as applicable. The amendments to IFRS 7
require extensive disclosures of any financial asset reclassified
in the situations described above. The amendments are
effective from 1 July 2008.

As the Group has not reclassified any of its financial

instruments, the amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or results of operations of the Group.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

IFRIC 11 /FRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

IFRIC 11 requires arrangements whereby an employee is
granted rights to the Group's equity instruments to be
accounted for as an equity-settled scheme, even if the
Group buys the instruments from another party, or the
shareholders provide the equity instruments needed. IFRIC
11 also addresses the accounting for share-based payment
transactions involving two or more entities within the
Group. The interpretation has had no impact on the financial
position or results of operations of the Group.

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

IFRIC 12 applies to service concession operators and explains
how to account for obligations undertaken and the rights
received in service concession arrangements. No member of
the Group is an operator and, therefore, this interpretation
has had no impact on the financial position or results of
operations of the Group.

IFRIC 14 /AS 19 = The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction

IFRIC 14 addresses how to assess the limit under IAS 19
Employee Benefits, on the amount of a refund or a reduction
in future contributions in relation to a defined benefit
scheme that can be recognised as an asset, including
situations when a minimum funding requirement exists. As
the Group has no defined benefit scheme, the interpretation
has had no effect on these financial statements.
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

IFRS T and IAS 27 Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of

Amendments

IFRS 1 (Revised)

IFRS 2
Amendments

IFRS 3 (Revised)

IFRS 7
Amendments

IFRS 8

IAS 1 (Revised)
IAS 23 (Revised)
IAS 27 (Revised)

IAS 32 and IAS 1
Amendments

IAS 39
Amendment

IFRIC 9 and
IAS 39
Amendments

IFRIC13
IFRIC 15
IFRIC 16
IFRIC17

IFRIC18

IFRSs and |AS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements — Cost of an Investment
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate’

First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards®

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment —
Vesting Conditions and Cancellations’

Business Combinations’

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosure — Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments’

Operating Segments'

Presentation of Financial Statements’

Borrowing Costs’

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements®

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation’

Amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement — Eligible
Hedged Items®

Amendments to IFRIC 9 Reassessment of
Embedded Derivatives and IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement®

Customer Loyalty Programmes’

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate’

Hedges of a Net Investment in a foreign
Operation”

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners?

Transfers of Assets from Customers?
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2.3

2.4

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Apart from the above, the International Accounting Standards
Board has issued Improvements to IFRSs* which set out
amendments to a number of IFRSs primarily with a view to
removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. Except for
the amendments to IFRS 5 which is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009, other amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 although
there are separate transitional provisions for each standard.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009

Improvements to IFRSs contains amendments to IFRS 5, IFRS 7, IAS 1, IAS 8,
IAS 10, IAS 16, IAS 18, IAS 19, IAS 20, IAS 23, IAS 27, IAS 28, IAS 29, IAS 31,
IAS 34, IAS 36, IAS 38, 1AS 39, IAS 40 and IAS 41.

¥ vob oW oo —

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application.
So far, it has concluded that while the adoption of IFRS 7
Amendments, IFRS 8 and IAS 1 (Revised) may result in new or
amended disclosures, these new and revised IFRSs are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and
financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment loss.

FHZR (KE) BRAF » —FTNFFR
EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO,, LIMITED ® Annual Report 2008
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Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired assets.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period
in which it arises.
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A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii)

has joint control over the Group;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (b);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (b) or (c); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where
the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

FHER (KE) BRAT » —2F/\FFH
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cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
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A lives and residual values used for this purpose are as follows:
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Estimated useful lives Residual values

BF Buildings 40%F years 10%
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Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each balance
sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plant and machinery under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of 40 to 50 years.
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Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of
the retirement or disposal.

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Land lease prepayments represent the cost of land use rights paid
to the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") government authorities.
Land lease prepayments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Financial assets in the scope of IAS 39 are classified as loans and
receivables, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.

FHER (KE) BRAT » —2T/\FFH
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The Group assesses whether a contract contains an embedded
derivative when the Group first becomes a party to it and assesses
whether an embedded derivative is required to be separated
from the host contract when the analysis shows that the
economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative
are not closely related to those of the host contract. Reassessment
only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets
after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction costs.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired.
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Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount
of the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
Loan and receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement, to the extent that the
carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at
the reversal date.

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for
impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as
the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of
the debtor and significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse effect on
the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of the
amounts due under the original terms of an invoice. The carrying
amount of the receivables is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they
are assessed as uncollectible.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/
or purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar
provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset
that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a written
put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision)
on an asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair
value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-
bearing bank loans)

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
interest-bearing bank loans are initially recognised at fair value
less directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. The related interest expense is
recognised within “Finance costs” in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.
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The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward
currency contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign
currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken
directly to the income statement.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by
reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with
similar maturity profiles.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate portion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statements, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

For the purpose of consolidated balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, which are not
restricted as to use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

FHER (KE) BRAT » —2T/\FFH
EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO,, LIMITED ® Annual Report 2008



PRk M aE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R=ZFZF)\F+=H=+—H 31 December 2008

FURTEEN  AERABRB LR
HEREEBARZIARAINEER 2R
18 - BER R M ol Bz BRIR VAR INE
FEAME R Z B EKAR o

AEERREERRE T ZEMKRIESRE
HEMBE CEEREIRE B REE
WinHBREHRE -

ISR EEERMEHRMETHER -
SHERSERER - ERFRHXIEHE
EAERDPREREBEB AEESTIE
fER.

AEEBEMRZERNRAEERBEN
Al PUEISR A TSR 2 SR E -

REEBRUAREAEZEERABEMG
BERMgcEERREREECHZIAE
ERMEReRBEXTRETHEAR
o

P FERR T BT B 1 2 SR PR A 2 IR RER TR
BEHTHER - EATERERS -

WEIELR IR R E R IFBERA O
ZRPPNRER 2 EESREE
£ RRETRZRE S AEERE
RN S IR B E -

SE KRB AR ZIRE 2 R E K
MEEME  WERBREREER 2
BRI R A PR ) - M E A M= R AT e
FER] R AG IR O 5

—2R\EFR - FHER (KE) ARAF
Annual Report 2008 ® EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the balance sheet date of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their
present values as appropriate.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to
items that are recognised in the same or a different period directly
in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely,
previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.
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Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the
periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the
costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account
and is released to the income statement over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms; and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are given
in note 30 to the financial statements. In valuing equity-settled
transactions, no account is taken of any performance conditions,
other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the
Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.

61



B RS AR B AE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R=ZFZF\F+=H=+—H 31 December 2008

62

BEEER 5 2 KA ER RME 2 1 ETH IR
SREINRRR KRB &M < B
R EEHBEETEZEFAZBM A
(IFERDAL - REERNESELEER
A ERFHER REMAX - RIRE
ERmEBHARZAX MAKE S &L
BEBETAHE 2&EMRT - 88
A W 5% 2 HRL 3K B R 48 5% BA R F 46 A0 4
RED R RIER 2 28 -

HARTERE 2 M SRR - W
B2 BTSSRI RN - RIZBERT
THEREINZM S GRS GIFRBE
2 R RIRIGTBREK o

EREGE RN 2RISR - SERR
D2 R BRI BAEERT AR o Ut
S - EHERTE A 2 E AR M N R Z 52
NP EABECENSINEM T EHSREESR
MZIEFTIRIEET A 2 sH BRI ©

ERBEERMEER @R ERMER
AHEAKERE - MR R RER 2 E
I F s & BIRSHERR © AT - fiei L 36 - TR A
BEMBERZABH - LHEERRHLER
RN - RIZIAE S MmN e
BPT R SR A RN 2 S RT AREEIE ©

AAEERANE - MARITEBRE S
A R R BB NN B

RIBHBEZREIER  ARAEREE
MzMBRRRREMBNTEE 2 EBEE
AHFeETHERRAAETEHEERNERE
B2 RIRGHBIMHAR - B E IR 2 RIKETEI
BEURARKEEXNERENZE
T BREBFHFO  AREEERENRE
M E A B THRINRAEF 5 EE A H
B °

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending
on the date on which the relevant employees become fully
entitled to the award (the "vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit
to the income statement for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However,
if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations of the PRC, the
Company's subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required
to contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan for all its
PRC employees at certain percentages of the basic salaries
predetermined by the local governments. The state-sponsored
retirement plan is responsible for the entire retirement benefit
obligations payable to retired employees and the Group has no
further obligations for the actual retirement benefit payments or
other post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
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The costs of employee retirement benefits are recognised as
expenses in the income statement in the period in which they are
incurred.

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the
balance sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved
by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
are initially recorded using the functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date. All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the balance sheet date, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date and their income statements are translated to
RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. Foreign
exchange differences on retranslation are recognised directly in
the exchange fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the
cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside Mainland China are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of subsidiaries
operating outside Mainland China which arise throughout the
year are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties which are leased out on operating
leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately, the Group
accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could not be
sold separately, the property is an investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does
not qualify as an investment property.
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The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

Impairment of assets

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the asset is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. A change in the estimated
future cash flows and/or the discount rate applied will result in
an adjustment to the estimated impairment provision previously
made.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various
factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from
changes or improvements in production, or from a change in the
market demand for the product or service output of the asset,
expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear,
the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits
on the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the
asset is based on the experience of the Group with similar assets
that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is made if
the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment are different from the previous
estimation. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each
financial year end date based on changes in circumstances.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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Provision against product warranties

The Group provides one-year warranties on the mobile phones
sold to its customers, under which faulty products are repaired
or replaced. The amount of the warranty provision is estimated
based on the sales volumes and past experience of the level
of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on an
ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management’s judgment and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will have an impact on the carrying
amounts of inventories and the write-down charge/write-back
amount in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business
segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by
geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
products they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of the
other business segments.

Summary details of the business segments are as follows:

(i) the multi-layer ceramic chips ("MLCC") segment engages in
the manufacture and sale of MLCC and the trading of MLCG;

(i) the mobile phones segment engages in the manufacture
and sale of mobile phones; and

(i) the mobile phone components segment engages in the
manufacture and sale of mobile phone components and the
trading of mobile phone components.

FHER (KEE) BRAT » —2T/N\FFHK
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
In determining the Group's geographical segments, revenues

7 Eb 2 WA IR

BEFZNE MoBMcBEEREEZM
B - HRAKE 2 BEBIBIONFEX
B Y ERAKRE 2D BEREE
KRERHAZ 2 EFY

DHEZHERERD2ERERTISE

RAF=THEZEBRS -

(a)

e iyl

TRIHAEEZER D HBREZE
20084 [2 2007 12 A31 B IEFEZ I
AFEERETEE ABEIHZ

B and 2007.
BEIFH
Mobile 85 Fohy
MLCC phones Eliminations Total
ARETIT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
E%2008%F12831H Year ended 31 December 2008
LEE
DEBBIA Segment revenue:
INBR P HE Sales to external customers 232,646 545,161 - 777,807
DEPFEISHE Intersegment sales 3,806 - (3,806) -
Hp A Other income 1489 716 - 2,205
BEt Total 237,941 545,877 (3,806) 780,012
DEBELE Segment results 37,715 (8,463) - 29,252
SRITMBIWARADE  Bankinterestincome and
Iz unallocated gains 5,908
NEIREMADBEFZ  Corporate and other
unallocated expenses (10,977)
AR Finance costs (2,353)
BREATAE Profit before tax 21,830
IR Tax (10,513)
FEAE Profit for the year 11317

are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on
the location of the assets. No assets and capital expenditure
information is presented for the Group’s geographical segments,
as over 90% of the Group's assets are located in Mainland China.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

(a) Business segments
The following tables present revenue, profit and certain
asset, liability and expenditure information for the Group's
business segments for the years ended 31 December 2008
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Business segments (continued)

(a)

At 31 December 2008

Segment assets
Corporate and other
unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Corporate and other
unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment information

Depreciation and amortisation
Corporate and other
unallocated amounts

Capital expenditure

Additional warranty provision

Provision against slow-moving
inventories

Impairment of trade receivables

mLcc
AERBTT
RMB000

440,578

99,781

17,774

122,226

1,098
1316

BEFH
Mobile
phones

ARBTT
RMB'000

194,594

136,310

1,817

2,215
15,449

400

85
Eliminations

ARBTT
RMB'000

st
Total

AREBT T
RMB'000

635,172

42,185
677,357

236,091

52,603

288,694

19,591

9
19,690

124,441
15,449

1,498
1316
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(a) Business segments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2007

Segment revenue:

Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Other income

Total

Segment results

Bank interest income and
unallocated gains

Corporate and other unallocated
expenses

Finance costs

Profit before tax
Tax

Profit for the year

BEBFH

b

BBHFH Mobile
Mobile phone S Bt
MLCC phones components* Eliminations Total
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
221,545 609,774 3,289 - 834,608
7,098 - - (7,098) -
1,087 - - - 1,087
229,730 609,774 3,289 (7,098) 835,695
45,861 43,163 30 - 89,054
2467
(13854)
(3211)
74456
(6,023)

68433



4, DEERE) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) EBoI(E) (a) Business segments (continued)
BBHFH
T
BEFH Mobile
Mobile phone S Bt
MLCC phones components* Eliminations Total

72007F12A31H At 31 December 2007

DEEE Segment assets
NRREMADEEE  Corporate and other unallocated
assets
BERE Total assets
AHEE Segment liabilities
NAIREMADEERE  Corporate and other unallocated
liabilities
BELE Total liabilities
Htv o HER Other segment information
HEREE Depreciation and amortisation
DA REMEXDESTE  Corporate and other unallocated
amounts
BARE Capital expenditure
AR REHA Corporate and other unallocated
AOBERHR capital expenditure
BIMEREE Additional warranty provision
RETERE/ Provision/(reversal of provision)
(BfERm) against slow-moving inventories
FEWE 5 ERR Reversal of impairment of trade
RERE recelvables
Hev ERE Impairment of other receivables
* PREIZE2007F 12831 HIEFE - BEIFHEITHZ *

EBHHE B EFH 2 EBHLRE - Fit -
AREER2007F12A31 A2 BB FHITIFH 2
EOHEEREE -

AEBTL ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETL
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

306,256 186,951 - - 493207
129,895

623,102

67,893 115374 - - 183,267
51,760

235027

14102 1,082 - - 15,184
11

15,195

34,805 4157 - - 38962
_ . - - 8270

- 13210 - - 13210
(4717) 1,908 - - (2809)
(88) - - - (88)
386 - - - 386

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the business segment of mobile
phone components has been integrated with that of mobile phones and
therefore, the Group’s mobile phone components segment had no segment
assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2007.



4, DEERE) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) iE DI (b) Geographical segments
TRIWEAREFE 2 DA REE The following table presents revenue information for the
20085 [ 2007F12A31 B IEFE 2 I Group's geographical segments for the years ended 31
ANEHR} December 2008 and 2007:

—ETLF

2007

ARETT

RMB'000

SN EHE - Sales to external customers:

B A B Mainland China 594,122

BB RRF Hong Kong and Macau 221,630

=B R BOM America and Europe 5651

= Taiwan 7,661
TEH Turkey -

e India 5,544
834,608

5. WA - HtIl A R s 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
WA(TMARASE 2 £ ) EEEEME Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net
SFEHBRRRERE ST EE) - invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts.
WA ~ AR A RGBT AT - An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

BsE ZETLF
Notes 2007
ARETTT

RMB’000

WA Revenue

MLCCIH & Sale of MLCC 221,545

BEIFHRIHE Sale of mobile phones 609,774

BB FHRITHIEE Sale of mobile phone components 3,289
834,608

Haplg A Other income

SRITHFBULA Bank interest income 7 956

AL WA Rental income 7 503

IEgRE a1 Government grant -

PEIEUT A Amortisation of deferred income 26 1,087

SHERM R Sale of materials 958

Hitb Others 50

3,554
g Gains
DFEME - R Fair value gains, net:
PTETIE-TEEES Derivative instruments — transactions not

HAHRB RS qualifying as hedges 7



RITEFFE

BRB 1 R R

AEEZBHAAMBENR,GIA)

EEFEMA

e

HHE L TR SR8
WFT R
AR

R+ BB B

BFLEERORK
HERE
i Gl e
EEBNHAY(BIEES
B (FiaEs)) -
IENFS
IRRAEFI R
RS e 4 B BRI R S
ERZECFEE)
T ERE
(B R )*
FEUE SERFORE,
CRERE R )*
HoAth E WHOR (B
E IR 2 BEIMEE
R 47 By
N EWES - F58
PTETE-THFAEEA
HHEH RS
e U A
RITFEHA
HEME - BE K&
ZEE

= BTSRRI EAES R LT H -
ZfHBh

Interest on bank loans

FINANCE COSTS

BT F
2007
ARETIT
RMB'000

3211

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):
gz —ZET+F
Notes 2007
ARETT
RMB'000
Cost of inventories sold 688,431
Depreciation 14,15 14,945
Amortisation of land lease prepayments 16 250
Research and development costs:
Current year expenditure 12,759
Less: Government grants (1,000)
11,759
Minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of buildings 662
Auditors’ remuneration 1,500
Employee benefit expense (including
directors’ remuneration (note 8)):
Wages and salaries 45,084
Retirement benefit contributions 2,491
Equity-settled share option expense -
Foreign exchange differences, net 3,426
Provision/(reversal of provision) against
slow-moving inventories* (2,809)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of trade
receivables® 20 (88)
Impairment of other receivables* 21 386
Additional provision for product warranty 25 13,210
Government grant** (1,000)
Fair value gains, net:
Derivative instruments — transactions not
qualifying as hedges 5 -
Rental income 5 (503)
Bank interest income 5 (956)
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment -
)~ FELRE %EE.M,@ * Provision/(reversal of provision) against slow-moving inventories,
FRBEE B EELS impairment/(reversal of impairment) of trade receivables and impairment

of other receivables are included in “Other expenses” on the face of the
consolidated income statement.

Government grant represented the subsidy received from the Shenzhen
Bureau of Science Technology & Information for listing expenditure.



8. EEM<

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

EEMEFBFOT ¢ Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows:
—EEF
2007
ARETIT
RMB'000
we Fees _

HbEie Other emoluments:

e MoERL Salaries and allowances 981
RREF R Retirement benefit contributions 33
IR S B AR 2 Equity-settled share option expense -
1,014
1,014

FP - BETEFRRS AN EEREME
1B AR A R 2 SRR MRS £I5E T HARRME - B
Bt — B D MR BRI 30 - &
EHARIE 2 AT B (K E R BB SRR S
RAVHER) EREHAMET - M ALE
ENBRELSEOREE LY EEMNE
ZRBERP o

TN ARETESNFHFHT ANRBEM
EEERMARNKEZ BE - HIFRRER
BE IESFERLKFATHLRFA
Z AT AT BN -

(a) BIFHTES
FRARBLIFRTEE N Z2BEM

T
Zjar Mr. Liu Huanbin
HELAE Mr. Pan Wei

KERILE Mr. Peleus Chu

During the year, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options
which has been recognised in the income statement over the
vesting period was determined as at the date of grant, and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to any
of the directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There
was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year.

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

2007
AREETT
RMB'000




8. EEM<#) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) BUFHITES(Z (a) Independent non-executive directors (continued)
ikt - BEEERRRELE Mr. Liu Huanbin, Mr. Pan Wei and Mr. Peleus Chu were
R2007F3 7B EZE AR AR BL appointed as the independent non-executive directors of
EBMITES - BLE2007F12A3181E the Company on 7 March 2007. There were no fees payable

FE > WERRABZIIFNTEFZ B to independent non-executive directors during the year
& o ended 31 December 2007.

FERI A B IFNITES L H A There were no other emoluments payable to independent
B4 (20074F : ) - non-executive directors during the year (2007: Nil).

(b) FITRIFHITES (b) Executive and non-executive directors

HZ20085F Year ended
128318 LEE 31 December 2008

BITEE Executive directors:
RERLE Mr. Chen Weirong
BHREE Mr. Liao Jie
wiRtL Ms. Shuang Mei

FHTES Non-executive directors:
BRERE Mr. Cheng Wusheng
RAEMELE Mr. Zhang Zhilin

ey Mr. Chen Hao
TEREAE Mr. Li Hegju




8. EEM=®) 8.
(b) BATRIFHITES(E)

220075 Year ended
12A31BLEE 31 December 2007
HITES Executive directors:
BRERTE Mr. Chen Weirong
B EAE Mr. Liao Jie
Bt Ms. Shuang Mei
FEHTEE: Non-executive directors:
BRELE Mr. Cheng Wusheng
REMEE Mr. Zhang Zhilin
PR S Mr. Chen Hao
FERESE Mr. Li Heqiu
9. IEEEH2ER 9.

FR - sEERFEEBE24(2007F -
2B)EE - HEMFBHN EXWEs - F
R HER3Z(2007%F  3R)HEEF - &=
HeREBZHMFHBOT

e KoEL Salaries and allowances 858
IRIRTEF R Retirement benefit contributions 33

MRS IR R Equity-settled share option expense

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive and non-executive directors (continued)

BRER
R
e RoEak Retirement ae
we Salaries benefit Total

Fees andallowances  contributions  remuneration

ARETT AR®TE ARETT ARETRT

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
- 465 I 476
- 213 1 224
- 303 Il 314
- 981 33 1,014

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2007: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three
(2007: three) non-director, highest paid employees for the year
are as follows:

2007
ARETT
RMB'000
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REBARAEBENXE R BEMENMEE
ZREREREL Z N BIRER T BN
B -

AEBYERBFBNERELEE AR
REARAREBIRERNBBELRESE
ARELFI o

H2007F316BHAEMETEEZRAR
REAEERAREZ L PRLEMER
E(TFEERRBREZ]DBEME  WER
200851 A1 HBAERR - FTEEAEHES
A—ZR5E8) - IF(ETRM) F A%
B RINERE T ENSRA—H25% °

BRIE(EBERERTCEMEHAEESR
R HY 3R AN ) (B 32200713957 ) FUIRE R
ZHEBEHREZFEHE2008F1 A1 HEF
NEFBEIEEME - ZHLEBH
K150 2 (DE » EBF2008F 1 18% 5
2009 F 2 200% B B~ 2010F 12 22% B 3 »
201 1 F R 24% B TR K 201 2F H 25% 88 %k » B
WHERABTHEMEEZCEERERER
BUR T 15%F RN 2SR - BE=
F(BFE20084F) °

Nil to RMB1,000,000

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

—2TN\E ZETLF
2008 2007
3 3

During the year, share options were granted to two non-director,
highest paid employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosures in note
30 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options,
which has been recognised to the income statement over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current year
is included in the above non-director, highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits derived from or earned in Hong
Kong during the year.

During the 5th Session of the 10th National People’s Congress,
which was concluded on 16 March 2007, the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law (the “New Corporate Income Tax Law”) was
approved, and which became effective from 1 January 2008.
The New Corporate Income Tax Law introduces a wide range of
changes which include, but are not limited to, the unification of
the income tax rate for domestic-invested and foreign-invested
enterprises at 25%.

Pursuant to the State Council Circular on the Implementation
of the Transitional Concession Policies for Corporate Income
Tax (Guo Fa [2007] no. 39), enterprises previously entitled to a
reduced tax rate shall have a grace period of five years regarding
the tax reduction commencing on 1 January 2008; the enterprises
entitled to a 15% corporate income tax rate will be subject to tax
rates of 18% in 2008, 20% in 2009, 22% in 2010, 24% in 2011 and
25% in 2012 and thereafter. Enterprises certificated as high-tech
enterprises are subject to an enterprise income tax rate of 15% for
three years (including 2008) under a preferential tax policy.

FHER (KE) BRAT » —2F/\FFH
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EEFFE WAZERKEEZEF -
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FIE DR 200812 A 16 H R A S H Hilr
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ZHEFHEETFRERERAR(LRBEF
[% 1) R 200858 A2s BN Z A stk L
BB ZE2008F 12 A31 H I FEIRE ER
T M) 25% 2 TR R BRI EFTSH -

The Company's subsidiaries, Shenzhen Eyang Technology
Development Co,, Ltd. (SZ Eyang”) (RIITIFEEHEZER BR
A A]) and Shenzhen Eycom Technology Co., Ltd. ("SZ Eycom”)
CRINIT EBEHAFR A R)) are located in the Shenzhen Special
Economic Zone and are therefore subject to an income tax rate
of 18% (2007: 15%). In accordance with the relevant income tax
laws and regulations of the PRC for manufacturing enterprises,
SZ Eyang and SZ Eycom were exempted from corporate income
tax ("CIT") for two years commencing from their first year with
assessable profits after deducting the tax losses brought forward,
and were entitled to a 50% tax exemption for the next three years.

The year ended 31 December 2006 was SZ Eycom'’s first profit-
making year and was the first year of its tax holiday. Accordingly,
SZ Eycom was subject to CIT at a rate of 9% for the year ended
31 December 2008 (2007: Nil).

The year ended 31 December 2003 was SZ Eyang’s first profit-
making year and was the first year of its tax holiday. Accordingly,
SZ Eyang was subject to CIT at a rate of 7.5% for the year ended
31 December 2007. SZ Eyang has obtained the certification of a
hi-tech enterprise on 16 December 2008, to which a CIT rate of
15% shall apply from 2008 to 2010.

The branch of SZ Eyang, the branch of SZ Eycom and Dongguan
Eyang Technology Development Co,, Ltd. ("DG Eyang") (BREE M F
5 RHEE R B PR A7) are located in Dongguan and are subject
to CIT at a rate of 25% on their assessable profits for the year

ended 31 December 2008 (2007: 33%).

Anhui Jineyang Electronic Technology Co,, Ltd. (“Anhui Jineyang”)
(B R FBEFRITER AR, which was incorporated in
Anhui province on 25 August 2008, is subject to CIT at a rate of
25% on its assessable profits for the year ended 31 December
2008.

—EEN\F ZETLF
2008 2007
AR¥T T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RER - Group:

BPER— AR Current — PRC
FEBBZH Charge for the year 8,790 6,158
FEIE (BMI5E18) Deferred (note 18) 1,723 (135)
FARBZ LB Total tax charge for the year 10,513 6,023
—EE R FHER (EE) ARAT 77
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REE —20085F

e
BAERERAE A

ITEBZRATE -
BEHE BERE

BRRBE

BERBMA

AR HIBR

e 2 AL
HEEE

VEED L HERR

HAKEZHEMEAR
Al IR
ZHE

Efth

BASEERHEHE
LB

REE - 20075

e
BAERRHRBR

ITEBZRBETE -
BEME  BERE
BORABER
HEEEHHIRY
A7
BRRRBA
OREGEE

Efth

RAEEERREHE
ZFAEHEX

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate

Tax effect of:

Lower tax rates for specific
districts

Taxincentives

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax losses utilised from
previous periods

Tax losses not recognised

Effect of withholding tax on
the distributable profits of
the Group's PRC subsidiaries

Others

Tax charge at the Group's
effective tax rate

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate

Tax effect of:
Lower tax rates for specific districts
Taxincentives
Effect on opening deferred tax

of change in tax rates
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Others

Tax charge at the Group's
effective tax rate

10. TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory income tax rate of the PRC to the
income tax expense at the Group's effective tax rate is as follows:

Group - 2008

Group - 2007
REARE
Mainland China
ARBTL BAl
RMB'000 %

88311
29,142 33

(15481) (18)
(9,608) (1m

ki
Cayman
ARBTT Asl
RMB'000 %
(13,855)

@it
Total
ARETT B
RMB'000 %
74,456
29,142 39

(15481) 21
(9,608) (13)

7 - - - 7 -
(163) - - - (163) -
719 1 - - 719 1
1407 2 - - 1407 2
6023 7 - - 6023 8




11.

12,

13.

FATRBEEABERE

HZE2008F12A3BIEFEZHRAGRK
BEREABRGEGZAFEREBBARE
8,790,000 7T ( 2007 F : & A 13,855,000
T0)  ZEEBERARARPEREPEE
(MfzE31(D)) °

11.

b‘ ;_4
iﬂh_i

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
parent for the year ended 31 December 2008 includes a loss of
RMB8,790,000 (2007: loss of RMB13,855,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 31(b)).

3= 12. DIVIDENDS

ZETLF
2007
ARETIT
RMB'000
MEBAREIRZRE Dividends declared by the subsidiaries 4,500

BURAE—F (20074 : Proposed final — Nil (2007: RMB5 cents per share)
BRARESL) 20,275
24,775

MEBARERZEEIEARBNE R AR
HZE2007F12A3BIEFEES IR MR T
BRREZRE -

BRARARERFAEABGERER

ERERZFHEGARIRERE AR
FEFHARE1317,00070(20074F : AR
#68,433,0007T) R F A B 1T 2 T @A hE
£ 35 £405,290,000 A% ( 2007 4 : 303,014,000
BROFTE -

BT EEZ2008F12A31BIEFEZF
EEARBF ZBRDNEFHE - BEHE
2007412 431 8 1EF£400,000,0000% B 21T
AL IA KB 20084F 1 A15 BT B EA AC A%
RE1% 31T 2 hNHETF155,290,0008% ©

RN ERE R R ARTTE 2 BN B
I EEEE - EI - W20 SR
BEANEHE -

13.

The dividends declared by the subsidiaries represent the
dividends declared and paid by the Company'’s subsidiaries to
their then shareholders during the year ended 31 December 2007.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent of
RMB11,317,000 (2007: RMB68,433,000) and the weighted average
of 405,290,000 ordinary shares in issue (2007: 303,014,000 ordinary
shares deemed to have been in issue) during the year.

The weighted average number of shares used to calculate the
basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2008
includes the weighted average of 5,290,000 shares issued upon
exercise of the over-allotment option on 15 January 2008 in
addition to 400,000,000 ordinary shares issued during the year
ended 31 December 2007.

The share options granted and outstanding during the year
had no dilutive effect during the period, accordingly, no diluted
earnings per share amount has been presented.



14. Y BWMERRZE

REE

2008128310

720075128318
T2008% 1 A18
A
ZEERAE

REFE

R2008E1A1H
IRZHTER
RE

AE

HE

23y
GEID)

FRFERE

R2008E12A318
B ZHAERRE

2008E12A318 ¢
A
ZHERRE

REFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

31 December 2008

At 31 December 2007 and at
1 January 2008:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net carrying amount

At T January 2008, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Transfer to investment
properties (note 15)

Provided during the year

At 31 December 2008, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At31 December 2008:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount




14. Y% - MERZREE) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
rEB(E Group (continued)

WERR
BER  EM®
#z  Officeand RE ERIR

BF Plant and other Motor  Construction s
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total

ARBTR ARRTT ARETT ARBTL ARETT ARETR
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBOOD  RMBOOO

R2007512A31H 31 December 2007
20065124318 At 31 December 2006 and at
RR2007F1A18 1 January 2007:
B AR Cost 37,180 125,200 11,338 1261 8336 183315
FHERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (3313) (33811) (3218) (552) - (40,894)
BREFE Net carrying amount 33867 91389 8,120 709 8,336 142421
#2007 1718 At 1 January 2007, net of
Mk 2 HERRE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 33,867 91,389 8120 709 8336 14241
NE Additions 266 21,267 5098 133 20,468 47,232
aH Transfers 9,985 - - - (9.985) -
BRERENE Transfer to investment properties
(BEk15) (note 15) (3.229) - - - - (3.229)
FRTERR Provided during the year (841) (11656) (2,204) (233) - (14934)
FR20075124318 At 31 December 2007, net of
MR 25 E RORE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 40,048 101,000 11014 609 18819 171490
#2007F12A318 At 31 December 2007:
XA Cost 44,02 146,467 16436 1394 18819 227318
SFHERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (4154) (45467) (5422) (785) - (55828)
RE%E Net carrying amount 40,048 101,000 11014 609 18819 171490
REBZ2BFPBEAREAFBEOR The Group's buildings are held under medium term leases in
= Mainland China.
AKEBIEFYE - BEMEBEAEREAE Details of the Group's property, plant and equipment pledged to
B ZRITERES - FME283) ° secure the Group’s bank loans are set out in note 28(a).
AR B R (Y R B A EB I R Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings of the
R2008E12 A3 B EEEFEY A ARK Group located in Dongguan with a net carrying amount of
T ETFREE Y AR o RMB6,166,000) have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC

authorities.



14. % - BRERRMEE) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

AN Company
#20085F12H31H 31 December 2008
2007124318 & At 31 December 2007 and at 1 January 2008:
200851 A1H ¢
B Cost
ZEIE Accumulated depreciation
AR5 Net carrying amount

720081 A1H - MMBRAFTHTE At 1 January 2008, net of accumulated depreciation

NE Additions
FRTERE Provided during the year

720081 A1H - MR RFTHTE At 31 December 2008, net of accumulated depreciation

7200812 H31H At 31 December 2008
DN Cost
E i Accumulated depreciation
RRIE 58 Net carrying amount
15. REYHE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

k=3 —TTAEF
Note 2007
ARET T
RMB’000
RATE 2 - Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated
MR EFHTE depreciation 482
BYE - BEK Transfer from property, plant
R and equipment 14 3,229
FRITERE Depreciation provided during the year a1
M12A318 At 31 December 3,700
128318 - At 31 December:
B Cost 3,759
REHITE Accumulated depreciation (59)
BRI 58 Net carrying amount 3,700



15.

16.

17.

BEWEE) 15.
NEFBZREWERBEFPRLOBFI AL
AR B ARE o

200812 A31H  AEBEREMEZ R
TEL B AR 24,690,0007T © TIARIEIE L
BEABERMMEME - RKFRETHER
EXEMARATIEAKEARAETS
ZEERE -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
The Group's investment properties are held under medium term
leases and are situated in Mainland China.

At 31 December 2008, the fair value of the Group's investment
properties was approximately RMB24,690,000, which was based
on the valuation by Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, on an open
market, existing use basis.

HE T EAR 16. LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS
“TELF
2007
AREFT
RMB'000
M1 ATVBZEEE Carrying amount at 1 January 11,208
FRRE Additions during the year -
FAEHEE Amortisation provided during the year (250)
M12A31 8 2 BREE Carrying amount at 31 December 10,958

PREBNR - ke k Current portion included in prepayments, deposits

H b FEUR R 2 BNEREE 5 and other receivables (250)
JERNEAEE D Non-current portion 10,708

AEEZHE T RIEFHEOF AL
R BIARE -

MERATP B N R AR BN ZEE

ST - R 2008412 A3 BERENEEL A
AR EE11,609,0007T 2 1A 1 10 {5 FARERS o

RMB AT ZRE 17.
FiN/NE|

JEETRG - LA E Unlisted shares, at cost

FEU K FEAT I B R R NBBIEA DR ZR
BHEERRBBED B AAREKT3367600
T0(2007%F + ) kAR ¥8623,0007T (2007
F 0 ARES174080007T) ¢ THEEE - 28
MRERRFEE - L EREUEENSHEBR
AIFIA REEHEE AT EES

The Group's leasehold land is held under medium term leases and
is situated in Mainland China.

The certificate of land use right in respect of the land use right of
the Group located in Chuzhou, Anhui province with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB11,609,000 as at 31 December 2008
has not yet been issued by the relevant PRC authorities.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company

—EBELF
2007
ARETTT
RMB'000

365,000

The amounts due from and due to subsidiaries included in the
Company's current assets and current liabilities of RMB73,367,000
(2007: Nil) and RMB8,623,000 (2007: RMB17,408,000), respectively,
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
carrying amounts of these amounts due from and due to
subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.



17. B AT Z2RE(#&)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

HEBAR HERFIMT
BRRL,/ERER
EXBERAE
Place and date of
ARER incorporation/registration
Company name and operations
Eyang Management Co, Ltd. EERTAHS
(‘Eyang Management’) —EETNENATH
BVl
10 August 2006
BETHER(EE)BRAF &b
Hong Kong Eyang Holdings (Group) ZEERFNATZA
Co, Ltd. Hong Kong
13 August 2006
EEFERRARLRA &8/ TEAE
Hong Kong Eyang Technology Co, “ZT-5+A+=AH
[td. Hong Kong/Mainland China
12 October 2001
AT /R
SZ Eyang* —EE-F-R-1+=H
PRC/Mainland China
22 February 2001
REFH i/ hEARE
DG Fyang* “EE-F=-A=-1ZH
PRC/Mainland China
22 March 2001
RYIER e/ hEARE
57 Eycom * “EEME=A=FMNA
PRC/Mainland China
24 March 2004
ZHEFH /R
Anhui Jineyang* —EEN\FA\AZTHA
PRC/Mainland China
25 August 2008
* RERRREPEEIEMKLABRAR - *
I AR M AR R B SRS o #

BERTR
BRRE/
EMEAEE

Nominal value of
issued and
paid-up share/
registered capital

10,0003 7T
US$10,000

10000 7T
HK$10,000

500,000/ 7T
HK$500,000

N
250,685,6507C
RMB250,685,650

AR #20,0000007T
RMB20,000,000

AE#10,0000007T
RMB10,000,000

ARH5000,0007T
RMB5,000,000

FLTRE
REEDL

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

ER
Direct
%

100

Company
k3
Indirect
%

o
o

FEER

Principal activities

REER

Investment holding

RARRK

Investment holding

BEMLCC
Trading of MLCC

SEEREEMLCC
Manufacture and sale of
MLCC

BTLHLER
MLCC

Lease of buildings and trading
of MLCC

SERSHEV BT
Manufacture and sale of
mobile phones

Companies incorporated as limited liability companies under the PRC law.

The company has not yet commenced operation.



PRk M aE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R=ZFZF)\F+=H=+—H 31 December 2008

REANREE 2 BEERIBEESSHOT - The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as
follows:
BEBARH
ZHEZER g% N% KR
LGS £ JE R K&
Amortisation ~ H#FE REMER EERE
of computer BE FHE  Impairment

softwarein  Provision Impairment of items
excess of tax against oftrade of property, RAEARE

allowed slow-moving andother  plantand  Warranty ECHY
depreciation inventories receivables equipment  provision Total

ARBTL ARERTL ARBTL ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMBO0O  RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O

20065124318 At 31 December 2006 and
R2007F1A1R 1 January 2007 21 685 215 69 682 1672
PUEEAE,/ (408) Credited/(charged) to the
(KizE10) income statement (note 10) 7 106 301 (12) (267) 135
#2007%12A318 At 31 December 2007 and
20081 A1H 1 January 2008 28 791 516 57 415 1807
RaE RN (M 10) Charged to the income
statement (note 10) 7) (259) 87) - (415) (768)
1420085124318 At 31 December 2008 21 532 429 57 - 1,039
AEER2008F12A31BHRBBEHAR The Group had tax losses of approximately RMB11,589,000 as
#11,589,0007C (200712 H31H : AR¥ at 31 December 2008 (31 December 2007: RMB905,000), that
905,0007T) * BB B A HEEEEZF can be carried forward for five years from the year in which the
RAHESTF  UHEEZERIMIBEE 2 losses arose for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
RABBEZERBAE - ARZEEER companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not
EHREE—BREH MBARES B been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
REFZHSBHBRNZBE  BHERAFER subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and there
HERRIE AR D EARAE - UBREE is insufficient convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits
HIEEE WA ZEEEERELER will be available to allow the utilisation of the carryforward of tax
HEE ° losses before they expire in five years.
ZEENFFR e FHER (KE) BRAA 85
Annual Report 2008 ® EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO, LIMITED



18. EHERIE ()

EAETR IR E E W RFLA TIE B W -

IS E1R
A TMHEREER

Tax losses

FA - REHABBIEBHNT

20075128318
N Gkl 23

7A2008%12H31H

RBEEMEEE  INRREERARF
B ABEMIINERECEESZREARR
10% M F R BURTEIRFTIS B © 5% 3R E 72008
FIATRBERR - BAMK2007F12A318
B BT RO EEFE o 8+ BB
ERRZHNBIR & & AT B R sk b & U 13 7
WL - ATEASEBEINRE - AEEH
AR ERS% o Bt - A5 B BKRE
RS2 Y B A R BL R 20081 B 1R &
B2 A] 4o Be M B s i A AN TR R TS 8

FR2008F 12 A31H » IR ETFTAEENE
R Z A TFRBEAT L EERELER
HEBERTFHERQ07F &) -

Deductible temporary differences

18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

EHE
Group

ZETLF
2007
ARET T
RMB'000

905
229

1,134

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as
follows:

BB
Withholding
taxes

ARETT
RMB'000

At 31 December 2007 -
Charged to the income statement (note 10) 955

At 31 December 2008 955

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between China and jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2008, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2007: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries.



20.

19.

78 19. INVENTORIES
Group
—ER+F
2007
ARETIT
RMB'000
bEe Raw materials 52,830
& Work in progress 9,258
2K Finished goods 19,884
81,972
TESHTT E R Provision against slow-moving inventories (6,505)
75,467
B E 5 R 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES
—EELF
2007
AREETIT
RMB'000
FEWE SRR Trade receivables 120,341
B Impairment (3,057)
117,284

AEBEEMCCERPZE ST ANRLERER
F B TMICCEFZERB—MA2E5E
A - BEFREEREER  AKBEKA
HEBRDHERIRKAETERAR S  WET
FERFRIBRIN  BE—REZ2EA 2
BH -

AEBEREREBEFIABBRBZES - I
RAEEEZEHEHPIAGEEERRRER
K- BEEEHRIARRERR - K
BIRRLHE -

The Group's trading terms with its MLCC customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period for MLCC is generally for two to five
months. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group's
revenue from sales of mobile phone is mainly on a cash basis
except for certain major customers, which are generally offered a
credit term of two months.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise
its credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
management. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.



20. ERE BRI (E) 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

WEER  REEOPAREEZRBIKE S An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the balance sheet
R BREROITIOT - date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

—ETF

2007

ARETFT

RMB'000

90H ™A Within 90 days 108,194
912180H 91 to 180 days 9,067
1812360H 181 to 360 days -
1226 110 2 years 1,544
2E3F 21to 3 years 1,536
FAiR3F Over 3 years -
120,341
BN E ZRFOBEREESIT - The movements in the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

—ETHF

2007

ARETT

RMB'000

M1 A1H At 1 January 3,145

BHERREEE,(BEE)  Impairment losses recognised/(reversed)

(Bt&E7) (note 7) (88)
WsH AT AT EIBRIE Z FI8  Amount written off as uncollectible -
M12H318 At 31 December 3,057
FAREEKEZEFBRERERERER Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
B A AR%30800007T (2007 F : AR¥E receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
3,057,0007T ) Z & Bl B R B FE W E 5 BR &K receivables of RMB3,080,000 (2007: RMB3,057,000) with a carrying
B A R #3,080,0007T (2007 F + AR amount of RMB3,080,000 (2007: RMB3,057,000). The individually
3,057,0007T) ° {52 R EEKE 5 IR impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were in
HERMERE s EFER - WEATATK financial difficulties and are not expected to be recovered. The
[0 o ZAER B0 M 5 b SF A SR B (R R Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements

s E M IR EEE I o over these balances.



20. BWE B RR(E)
I 18 5l 3k 2 RIAR AR (B 2 FE B 5 AR 3K
AR

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

EE
Group

—ETHF

2007

ARETT

RMB’000

1 AR 480 HA 7R LH R R (E Neither past due nor impaired 98,597
BEA 90 H Less than 90 days past due 18,664
#HRO1HZ180H 91 to 180 days past due -
#ER181 H E360H 181 to 360 days past due -
BER E2F 1to 2 years past due 23
117,284

1) R 280 HA 7 A L R ORL(E 2 FE MR B AR B
BETRAEPAR  RENTHMLEED
T4 ER -

EEHEELRRE REESERER
ZEIUEFAR  RERAKE A4
BRI - RIBAELSR  NABEZERR
HEEERWR/ERNE - BZSEKD

BRAAZ8KE - F it BER S S RIE
BB R

The trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of diversified customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

The trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on the past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.



21. AN - BEREAERR

SEENEN Prepayments
Re REAM IR

VERIER Impairment

His OB BB B 2 28T

®1A1R
BRERREEE (MisE7)

At 1 January

M12A31H

STAE MR EORE R EEER R ER
fib R 2 B o (BB B IR E 2 EL A B I
REN T HERZ RARERNRER
WA AU [E] o 7N 5 [ 30 4 L B A R
R TR A RS IR E R -

fe) 7R 280 5 7 4 1 3500 (B O B A PR KUK B BR
T B 62 e 5T A B 01T R ACER 2 Ho At
‘NG -

Deposits and other receivables

Impairment losses recognised (note 7)

At 31 December

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

REH AT
Group Company

—EBELF BT F
2007 2007
AREFIT AREETIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
6,025 -
7,909 3,478
13,934 3,478
(386) -
13,548 3478

The movements in the provision for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

EE

Group
—ETAF
2007
ARBFT
RMB'000

386
386

Included in the above provision for impairment of other
receivables is a provision for individually impaired other
receivables. The individually impaired other receivables relate
to long outstanding prepayments to suppliers which are not
expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over these balances.

The carrying amounts of the other receivables that were neither
past due nor impaired related to other debtors for whom there
was no recent history of default.
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22, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK

22. RERBAEEEYRSEFRITEN

DEPOSITS
rEH NN
Group Company
ZETF ZETLF
2007 2007
ARBETF T ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB’000
Re LRTTEH Cash and bank balances 214,798 103,950
EHITF R Time deposit 14,300 -
229,098 103,950
B ERIEFTEE Less: Pledged bank deposits for
RiERMRzE bills payable and letters
IR TIF K of credit (25,986) -
BERIFTERZ Pledged bank deposit for
BRI TER bank loans (note 28(b))
(BizE28(b)) (14,300) -
RABERMBRAZ  Cashand cash equivalents in the
R RIFLEFEY  consolidated balance sheet 188,812 103,950
N B FREIEAR Add: Bank deposits with original
DR3{E A maturity of less than three
ZIRITER months when acquired:
EREMNER Pledged for bills payable
KAz Rk and letters of credit 21,522 -
ERIBITER Pledged for bank loans - -
RERLMRERANZ  Cash and cash equivalents
REeRMESEEY  inthe consolidated cash
flow statement 210,334 103,950

REER  AEEZRERREEEYIU
AREZE - B AR101,272,0007T (2007
F 0 AREE72827,00070) © ARETRAIHH
Wk AT AR EIKRE 2 SNEE HIE
- BERIZAIMNEE SIERE - NEEE
B REREETINEEF 2 RITHBA
R¥& -

RITERIREE BIRITIF RN RIZF
MERBRIAE o FEHEMERARRF=
BAZE—FA1F - WiL(EHE B EHBFR
MERBRIAE o RITEBREERRITE
REFERROHT EEOTRLCHEZEER
TR -RBeLkReFEMIRAEEER
FERE -

At the balance sheet date, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB amounted to RMB101,272,000 (2007:
RMB72,827,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between three months and one year, and earn interest
at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and pledged bank deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
of the cash and cash equivalents and the pledged deposits
approximate to their fair values.




23.

24,

ENESZRRRENRE
REER  REERHREEZRNES
BRARENERZRESITAT

90BN Within 90 days
91£180H 91 to 180 days
181&360H 181 to 360 days
1829 11to 2 years
2E3F 2to 3 years
JERTRAE Bills payable

R SRR BT B R — R 30E120H
BT e

FET R0 H R EIHE -

MR2008F 124318 » AEBZEMNZEEA
R #41,980,0007C (2007 12 A31H + AR
#17,77700070) B A B 2 RITHERAR
#11,252,00070 (200712 B31H « AR
9,777,0007C ) YE3 R © FA2008F 12 4318 -
BT Z B RIE AR 10,000,000 A A S
EE%%% C BB REEIERERCRITE
ST -

EEWA - B ERAREMEMK

FIEUA Deferred income
Rt ER Accruals
H A FE TR Other payables

ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ%’(ﬁ?\ﬁi@&—ﬁé—ﬁW%

23. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the balance
sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

rEE
Group

—EELF
2007
ARETIT
RMB'000

118,670
1,518
186

68

120,442
17,777

138,219

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 30 to 120 days terms.

The bills payable will all be mature within 90 days.

The Group's bills payable amounting to RMB41,980,000 as
at 31 December 2008 (31 December 2007: RMB17,777,000)
were secured by the Group’s bank deposits amounting to
RMB11,252,000 (31 December 2007: RMB9,777,000). The
remaining bills payable of RMB10,000,000 as at 31 December 2008
were issued under bank facilities secured by certain property,
plant and equipment of the Group, details are set out in note
28(a).

24. DEFERRED INCOME, ACCRUALS AND OTHER

PAYABLES

rEE
Group

ESN|

Company

—TTEF —ETLHF
2007 2007
ARETIT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
1,197 -

8,275 1,100

25,145 1,025
34,617 2,125

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and will generally be
mature within one year.



25. PROVISIONS

“TELF
2007
ARETT
RMB’000
1 A1E At 1 January 9,087
EHINEE Additional provision 13,210
EBAeE Amounts utilised (17,688)
R12H318 At 31 December 4,609
REERETEP BB FHREHR—FR The Group provides one-year warranty on the mobile phones
A BREkzEMIBSENELR o (REH sold to its customers, under which faulty products are repaired
HeBERBIEEREENREKTEZAB or replaced. The amount of the warranty provision is estimated
TR o M EERFEETEER based on the sales volumes and past experience of the level
FARIEE REET o of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on an
ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.
26. EIEYA 26. DEFERRED INCOME
BUNFEB Government grants
rEE
Group
—ETEF
2007
ARETT
RMB’000
M1 ATBZEEE Carrying amount at 1 January 8,794
] Granted 1,485
B AW A (BEES) Amortised as income (note 5) (1,087)
M12A31 8 ZBREE Carrying amount at 31 December 9,192
BIRFEREW A « FEFTE R Current portion included in deferred income,
NEAMERTRZ accruals and other payables
BIEAER > (1,197)

FERNERER 5> Non-current portion 7,995
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Forward currency contracts

The government grants have been received from various
government authorities specifically for the purchases of qualified
plant and equipment in respect of the production of MLCC.
The fair value of the government grant is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the income statement over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments. Except for the condition that the government grants
must be specifically used for the purchases of qualified plant and
equipment in respect of the production of MLCC, there are no
other conditions relating to these grants.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. The government
grants relate to assets. The fair value of the government grants is
credited to the deferred income account and is released to the
income statement over the expected useful life of the relevant
assets by equal annual instalments.

—BENF
2008

BE
Assets
AR®T R
RMB’000

454

The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the same
as their fair values. The above transactions involving derivative
financial instruments are with Bank of East Asia (China) Limited of
A credit rating.

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts
to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of non-
hedging currency derivatives amounting to RMB454,000 were
charged to the income statement during the year (2007: Nil).

FHER (KE) BRAT » —2F/\FFH
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28. ;TERITER 28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

REE Group
ZTTLF
BERTERA=E 2007
Effective floating FIE A AREFT
interest rate Maturity RMB'000

L Current

FHEIRITER Interest-bearing bank loans

—HHEM - secured 177%-6.12% 2008 - 2009 40,000

REFHRRITERZ  Current portion of long term

ENHAER interest-bearing bank loans
— B A - secured 414%-35% 2008 - 2009 479
40,479
DA Analysed into:
FESETBIRITE © Interest-bearing bank loans repayable:
1R Within one year 40,479

AEBZIRTERMBITEERN TR The Group's bank loans and bank facilities are secured by:

(a) AREBZIEEFENARYT5434,000 (a) certain property, plant and equipment of the Group with a
(20074 + AR#54,59800070) 2 & net carrying amount of approximately RMB75,434,000 (2007
TYE - BENLEE & RMB54,598,000); and

by REBETFTRTER2EREA (b) the pledge of certain of the Group’s bank deposits
R # 28,579,000 7T (2007 F : AR amounting to RMB28,579,000 (2007: RMB14,300,000).
14,300,0007T) °

HBEBIETERDHAR6,614,0007T (2007 The secured bank loans of approximately RMB6,614,000 (31

F12RA318 « AR#4790007T) R AR December 2007: RMB479,000) and RMB35,379,000 (31 December

35,379,0007T (2007512 A31H : ) DRI 2007: Nil) are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United

B R IFEITHE ° 2000F12831BHBTZ States dollars, respectively. The remaining secured bank loans

49 A R #40,000,0007C B EIFRITEZAA of approximately RMB40,000,000 as at 31 December 2007 were

R¥5|(E - denominated in RMB.

RITEREEERENFEMRE - The carrying amounts of the bank loans approximate to their fair

values.

REBEHUT AT ZRITHEE ¢ The Group has the following undrawn banking facilities:

2007
ARETIT
RMB'000
FENF X Floating rate

—1FRNEm — expiring within one year



29. BEITRA 29. ISSUED CAPITAL

—ETLEF
2007
BET T
HKS$'000
JETE Authorised:
1,000,000,000 M & % 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares
H{E0018 T Bk of HK$0.01 each 10,000
BEITRER Issued and fully paid
405,500,0008% (2007412 A 405,500,000 (31 December 2007: 400,000,000)
31H : 400,000,0008% ) &% ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
HfE00TETTZ BB 4,000
ARETIEE Equivalent to RMB'000 3,773
LA BARARIR2007F3 A6 8 (GEfft A2 The following changes in the Company’s authorised and issued
H)E2008F 12 431 H I B B #ITZ0ATE share capital took place during the period from 6 March 2007 (date
N EBITREARE S - of incorporation) to 31 December 2008:
BR0.01E T
i3 ZEBRRY EEREE
Notes Number of Nominal
ordinary value of
shares of ordinary
HK$0.01 each shares
BETT
HK$'000
ETE Authorised:
JiNEAIDAVAS: On incorporation B) 5,000,000 50
AR A Increase in authorised share capital © 995,000,000 9,950
7200851 A1H 20085128318 Asat1 January 2008 and 31 December 2008 1,000,000,000 10,000
B#T: Issued:
REF BT Allotted and issued at nil amount paid (b) 5,000,000 -
P& Eyang Managementf Issued shares credited as fully paid on
ARIER R 2 BBITR D acquisition of Eyang Management (d) - 50
FARALZRORER Capitalisation issue credited as fully paid
RETHRNDTAR conditional on the share premium account
BRTARE - &R of the Company being credited as a result
BITARIESR of the issue of the new shares to the public e) 295,000,000 -
X EE RO RER Capitalisation of the share premium account
BREX as set out above ©) - 2,950
BRI Issue of new shares i 100,000,000 1,000
2007124318 K%2008F1A1H  Asat 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 400,000,000 4,000
TR R AR AE Issue of new shares upon exercise of the
BITHRAR over-allotment option ) 5,500,000 55

72008124318 As at 31 December 2008 405,500,000 4,055
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29, BERITRAE) 29. ISSUED CAPITAL (cc
B - Notes:

RARBFRYBE ARRZEERAE @  On incorporation of the Company, the authorised share capital of the

500,000/ 7T * 93 445,000,000 4% = f% I 1E0.01 7 7T
ZB&f5 o

HR2007F386H » ARQA DRI KT
5,000,000% T AT 1E0.01 7 7T 2 REM S - B D
HBIZ T AT ABRSIESLR -

MRIEF 2007911 A30BMB 2 RHE - ARFZ
Y5 T IR 38 3% 37.995,000,000 % 5 X T {E0.01 7
TCZ D+ E350,00078 7T HZ 10,000,000 7T ©

RIER2007F 11 B30 BB R ERLEEE
48+ 5,000,000 FREEE0.01E T2 D EIZ £
X () ATt 2200743 A6 B ARBUBCL 2 IR 3877 - Wik
EEARIESRZE -

RAER2007F 11 A30B BB ZRAAER - BHR
i BRI E A A FT2950,0008 TR EES B
2 FERR LE B AR B K 31T 4 712,950,000% AR &
0017 7T 2 B3 GREEARIIESR) FA QA
ERZEBRRE - ZEREAR2007411 A30AH
PAR A REZT AR BIREAMZIRE - %
Pt 8% K% 8 75 A AN B AR BR (0 V48 (B BR R T 3T () FT L AR
ARIZERARESHBZEITHRG FTRRM
ERSHRE - HARE -

RARRZERAFREESTE + A5100,000,000
BEREAEBEETZBROEERIZETZ
BT RREREBERFLTRAIZANA
130,000,000/ 7T © LSRR 22007812 A21 H A
TEHAZMER -

RIEF2007F12 B 10B 2 B RE - AARIRT
R B EBR LM ARIBIEHB R A AR E
([FBEEMMRAE]) « IR AA R BB NI B I 3
774 515,000,000 B A% 179 A 48 B B D 3 & > B %58
Ao % o MBEERRAE 2 BRITEE B30T - B
2008 1 HoRH - EBRRACAREC &1 T6E - Eut -
AN F)EBAHNEE 1T 5,500,000 B {5+ I HA 200841
A1sBRBEBIITEE B BRND

FT{8 338 55,0007 7T (BNEE) B Rt ARQ A Z %
R o ek T FT 13 3R IE7,0950008 0 (AHE R AR
#6,588,0007T ) BB AR B ERR - M AR5 BAT
7 2 208,000/ 7T (& R AR ¥193,0007T) B 1E
RRAD IR EERIBR o

NEER o FHEER (K@) BRAF
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Company was HK$50,000 divided into 5,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 6 March 2007, 5,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued
at nil amount paid. The shares were subsequently credited as fully paid as
described in (d) below.

Pursuant to the resolutions passed on 30 November 2007, the authorised
share capital of the Company was increased from HK$50,000 to
HK$10,000,000 by the creation of additional 995,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each.

Pursuant to the resolution passed on 30 November 2007 and the group
reorganisation, 5,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each allotted and issued at nil
amount paid on 6 March 2007 as set out in (b) above, were credited as fully
paid at par.

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 30 November 2007, an aggregate of
295,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were allotted and
issued, credited as fully paid at par, by way of capitalisation of the sum
of HK$2,950,000 from the share premium account, to the then existing
shareholders of the Company, whose names appeared in the register of
the Company at the close of business on 30 November 2007, in proportion
to their respective shareholdings. Such allotment and capitalisation were
conditional on the share premium account being credited as a result of the
issue of new shares to the public in connection with the Company’s initial
public offering as detailed in (f) below.

In connection with the Company’s initial public offering, 100,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$1.3 per share for a total cash
consideration, before listing expenses, of HK$130,000,000. Dealings in these
shares on the Stock Exchange commenced on 21 December 2007.

Pursuant to the underwriting agreement dated 10 December 2007, the
Company granted an option (the “Over-allotment Option”) to CAF Securities
Company Limited, the sole lead manager of the Share Offer whereby the
Company was required to allot and issue up to an aggregate of 15,000,000
additional shares to cover over allocation in the Share Offer. The exercise
price per share for the Over-allotment Option is HK$1.30. On 9 January 2008,
the Over-allotment Option was exercised and, as a result, the Company issued
5,500,000 additional shares. Dealings in these shares on the Stock Exchange
commenced on 15 January 2008.

The proceeds of HK$55,000, representing the par value, have been credited
to the Company's share capital. The remaining proceeds of HK$7,095,000
(equivalent to RMB6,588,000) have been credited to the share premium
account and share issue expenses of HK$208,000 (equivalent to RMB193,000)
have been debited to the share premium account.
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The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include (a) any
proposed employee, any full-time or part-time employee, or a
person for the time being seconded to work full-time or part-
time for any member of the Group; (b) a director or proposed
director (including an independent non-executive director) of any
member of the Group; () a direct or indirect shareholder of any
member of the Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of the Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of
the Group; and (g) an associate of any of the foregoing persons.
The Scheme became effective on 30 November 2007 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share options granted
and yet to be exercised under any other schemes shall not exceed
30% of the Company’s issued share capital from time to time.
The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant) in excess of HKS5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

FHER (KE) BRAT » —2F/\FFH
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REBRENZORNELYHHKRBAR
EARAXNERIETORBANRERE
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HHAARESTETE  URXNETHRBHR
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BERKE LIRER -
REBZA EIA TR F N R ARTTIE -

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HKS1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted under the Scheme is determinable
by the directors of the Company, and commences after a certain
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years
from the date of offer of the share options or the expiry of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than whichever the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of
the share options; and (iii) the average Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme
during the year:

TEE
BREBET
Exercise price BREEE
HKS Number
per share of options
720081 A1H At 1 January 2008 -
FRRE Granted during the year 1.052 40,000,000
FT8H Cancelled 1.052 (600,000)
BRI Forfeited 1.052 (6,400,000)
A2008512831H At 31 December 2008 33,000,000
—FT/\FER THEK (EE) BRAD 99
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REEHBRITERNBBRENTTEE RT
FEEIINT -

—EENF
2008

TEE
BREHE BRBT
Number of options* Exercise price
HK$
per share
15,840,000 1.052
17,160,000 1.052

33,000,000

* RITEHNBEETERE BETA
SEMZEFRE AR

RN T BRI —F 2 B NS
F - MmEEE BHETRRE =F &K
FZAABKRERITERS D AELER
HERI60% ~ 30%52.10% °

WAL BB MME - = FREOF 2
B AREEHZE200F12ANBIEFEZ
ERAZFFE B E = 2007F 12 A31H 1E
FEHEMTDI18% - ANE B E F 20094
NRAJNBUEFEZE&EZFANELERERE
2008 12 A31 B IEFEIEIMTD18% « &
AREBEZ2010F12A31BLEFEZRE
ORI LB E E2000F 12 A3 B ILFE
AN DR18% » 77 Al BEA TIF BEARAE o

fief L 2t (R AF R BER B REFEERK - AIBEAR
FE(Z R DA L BB A HO80% AR TTIE © RTT
R T Rt WX BRI EARE
FRZEKREDRFBHITE -

P E R 8 AR A T {E 5 9487,00078
T BERREE—ZEEN\F+_A=1+—
A 1 F S MR AR A 7 =2 5,442,00078 7T (48
BN ARY4,947,0007T) °

100

The exercise price and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

1T

Exercise period

2008 AN EEI—201759F11 H29H

2008 result announcement date — 29 November 2017

20094F 20106 /201 F B A BEI—2017611 A29R
2009/2010/2011 result announcement date — 29 November 2017

*

The exercise numbers of the share options for the exercise
periods are dependent on the operating results of the
Group, details are as follow:

The share options may not be exercised at the anniversary of the
first year from the date of the grant and may conditionally be
exercised up to 60%, 30% and 10% of the total share options at
the anniversary of the second, third and fourth year respectively
from the date of the grant.

The share options may only be fully exercised in the event that the
audited net profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2008 increases not less than 18% as compared to that for the year
ended 31 December 2007, the audited net profit of the Group for
the year ending 31 December 2009 increases not less than 18% as
compared to that for the year ended 31 December 2008 and the
audited net profit of the Group for the year ending 31 December
2010 increases not less than 18% as compared to that for the year
ending 31 December 2009 at the anniversary of the second, third
and fourth year respectively from the date of grant.

The share options may only be exercised up to 80% of the share
options as set out in the above in the event that the above
conditions are not met in the respective years. The unexercised
share options may be accumulated and fully exercised in the
next year in the event that the above conditions are met in the
respective years.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HKS$9,487,000 of which the Group recognised a share option
expense of HKS$5,442,000 (equivalent to RMB4,947,000) during the
year ended 31 December 2008.

FHER (KE) BRAT » —2F/\FFH
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The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used:

—EENF

2008

AR S5 2 2 (%) Dividend yield (%) 6
T8 5 18 (%) Expected volatility (%) 44
4 2 B 1) 2R (%) Risk-free interest rate (%) 265
AR EE Life of options B B IR e 1 22 {8 4 P

RRERH BTN AR AR ERERE
TR EHRENGE DIREBEEEREA
A —FRUTEN A LT RARNEA
FHBREBEONME - XREARFARF
BoRt i B A A R RO R B0 (E R TR B B2 Bh T

B -

AFEATER - WEFADRLBREN
HADR5E, o

REEE B - BIEZETEI 22 54 33,000,000
MARITEERE - BERAQRRITHRA
8 - BEITHEHR THERESEBEE
Z%1733,000,000/% A2 B E A% - 1 INEETT
&% 25330,000/% 7T J2 B 19 % B 34,386,000/ 7T
(REPEEITRAZA °

RELET HHmEE B - BIEZTEI A AT
H32,70000010 RITHEEEMAE - (EARRFR
% BB B ETTRRD 498.06% ©

AEERAFERBEFEZHES
BREBHNPBREAT 2R ERE
BRZET -

—2R\EFR - FHER (KE) ARAF
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Whole life of each share option

Due to the insufficient data of the Company historical stock price
before the grant date, the estimation of expected volatility is
based on statistical analysis of daily share average prices of group
of listed companies in the similar industry over the one year
immediately preceding the grant date, adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility due to publicly available information.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 33,000,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of
the remaining share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 33,000,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional issued
capital of HK$330,000 and share premium of HKS$34,386,000
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 32,700,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 8.06 % of the
Company's shares in issue as at that date.

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.
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31. REE) 31. RESERVES (continued)

(a) FEHEE (@) Group (continued)

REBZEHRBHRIE - The contributed surplus of the Group represents:

() BEESESEHERWBHRERRZ ()  the difference of RMB203,536,000 being the excess
RAHEE R EHBERE L AR A of the nominal value of the shares and contributed
RRBMBET 2RO EBE L EZ5E surplus of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
AR #203,536,0007T + K& group reorganisation over the nominal value of the

Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor; and

(ii) AREFHELEREUE RS (i) the deficit of RMB2,823,000 arising from the acquisition
FHEROMEEZEBHARE of DG Eyang from the minority shareholders of DG
2,823,0007T ° Eyang.

(b) ARF (b) Company
gl BRE Ex
W RER 1.3 RE R
Notes Share Share  EHEH  Exchange  EEFR
premium option Contributed  fluctuation Accumulated @t
account reserve surplus reserve losses Total

ARETL  ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOQO

AR AV On incorporation - - - - - -
HRER Loss for the period - - - - (13855) (13855)
il pckit Total loss for the period - - - - (13855) (13855)
REEES Arising from the group

fEE reorganisation - - 364,952 - - 364,952
RERLEST Capitalisation issue of shares ~ 29(e) (2,782) - - - - (2,782)
Bi1Mk{D Issue of shares 29(0) 121670 - - - - 121670
RETIRGD 2 Listing expenses for issue

R of new shares (20,626) - - - - (20626)

ExRE Exchange realignment - - - (237) - (237)
2007FEOERERE  Proposed final 2007 dividend 12 - - - - (20275) (20275)

BR007F12A318 R Asat31 December 2007

20081 A1H and 1 January 2008 98,262 - 364,952 (237) (34,130) 428847
REERREE Issuance of new shares

e upon exercise of the

MR Over-allotment Option ~ 29(q) 6,395 - - - - 6,395
ERER Loss for the year - - - - (8790) (8790)
EEHE Exchange realignment - - - (4001) - (4001)
gt B iiiE Equity-settled share option

7 arangeents 30 - 4947 - - - 4947
TiEmRE Share option cancelled - (168) - - 168 -

1A200812A31R As at 31 December 2008 104,657 4,779 364,952 (4,238) (42,752) 427,398
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32, REHOZH

(a)

(b)

EREAA
AEBRBLEHANLHEEHIREY
E(MsE1s) KA ZHOFHA—
FENF -

REER  AEERBEBEFIT LR
THISRE 2 E 2 AR R ETEL -
BRGRRSETHS BRI

31. RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company (continued)
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the cost of investments in subsidiaries
pursuant to the group reorganisation and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options
expire or be forfeited.

32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGMENTS
(a) Aslessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from one to nine years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

rEE

Group
—EEEF
2007
ARETT
RMB'000
1R Within one year 966
F2E5F(BIEER2F) Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 371
5F & After five years 260
1,597

ERAMEA (b) Aslessee

AEBRBELEHORFEAE TR
FERMERME - KA 2BHFH
R2EF o

The Group leases certain of its factory and office premises
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties
are negotiated for terms of two years.




32, REBOZTHE) 32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGMENTS (continued)

(b) ERFEBAE (b) Aslessee (continued)
WeEEH  KEBREBESISR N5 HE At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future
BAZIER Z A o4 f8 4 - BFER minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
RAREEESLENT leases falling due as follows:
REE
Group
—ETEAF
2007
AREET T
RMB'000
1R Within one year 300
FEAF In the second year -
300
33, &g 33. COMMITMENTS
R 3B EE32(0) P 2 £ S AR AV A SD In addition to the operating lease commitments as set out in note
REER - NEB 2 EREAERNT ¢ 32(b) above, the Group had the following capital commitments as
at the balance sheet date:
rEH
Group
—TELF
2007
ARBTFT
RMB'000
BRTAEREME - Contracted, but not provided for:
gF Buildings 11,235
55 B e 2e Plant and machinery 13,965
BEEE Intangible assets -
25,200
34. IAREE 34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
AEEBRARANEERANTBEEANXAR At the balance sheet date, neither the Group nor the Company

f& o had any significant contingent liabilities.



35. BELRZ REEH
AEBRFRNEBET 2ERXR S MR
BREEET ZEHRIT

(1) BRBEZXRS

B 27

Name of parties

RE=mtmER
BRAR(IRZ=EADO

Dongguan Guangtong Enterprise Co., Ltd.

(‘DG Guangtong”) (i)

EEESE Y
BRAR (MRS D)
Dongguan Deyang Industrial Co., Ltd.
("DG Deyang”) (ii)

ffeE

(ii)

(@)

(b)

REABZBRABARFNTERRESR
S SLERIALE

REBBZBRRAARBAZBREREL
TZRB e

BRI T RBEEASBELRE)
EEHE

AR B RBE T AT 2 AR B RREZ

GRRRETSL -

EERA LM L X SEAEEZ H BERR
T2 T o

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
The Group had the following material transactions with related
parties during the year and balances with related parties at the
balance sheet date:

(1) Recurring transactions

REME

Nature of transactions 2007

ARETT
RMB’000

EEES
BEBSHFHEITIHE
Purchases of mobile phone
components from
DG Guangtong (a)
DEE Dt
W Bz e WA b)
Rental income received from
DG Guangtong (b)

17,572

65

pEE
BEBRBFHRITIHE)
Purchases of mobile phone
components from
DG Deyang (a)
EEEHD
WeE| 2 & WA Db)
Rental income received from
DG Deyang (b)

1,804

39

Notes:

(i) The shareholders of DG Guangtong are the brother and sisters of Mr.
Chen Weirong, an executive director of the Company.

(ii) The shareholders of DG Deyang are the brothers of Ms. Luo Zhanli, a
shareholder of the Company.

(@) The purchase prices for mobile phone components were mutually
agreed between the Group and the related parties.

(b)  The tenancy agreements entered into between the Group and the
related parties were based on mutually agreed terms.

In the opinion of the directors, the above transactions were
carried out in the Group's ordinary course of business.



35. BELRZREERRE) 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(continued)
(2) FERBERS (2) Non-recurring transactions
BERER RHME —ETF
Name of parties Nature of transactions 2007
ARETT
RMB’000
AR TR AR AR
BRAB(DIRIER]) XHrBEA
Heyuan Yitong Technology Co., Ltd. Sub-contracting fee paid
("HY Yitong") to HY Yitong 684
EERAFNFERBEI B REE In the opinion of the directors, HY Yitong was significantly
HERRZZEEREBEEAY influenced by SZ Eyang through participation in its financial
2o and operating policy decisions.
FBERARR S BERIIREAERE The sub-contracting fee charged by the related party was
ZAEFRETSL © based on mutually agreed terms.
EERALTIBESIRIEREE 2 In the opinion of the directors, the above related party
HEEBBEFETATEEARARQT] transactions, which did not continue after the listing of the
A& TR X P E TR IS4 - Company's shares on the Stock Exchange, were carried out
in the ordinary course of the Group's business.
(3) BAEF&EER (3) Balances with related parties
—TTAF
2007
ARBFT
RMB'000
ENRIE Due to
RENA DG Guangtong 460
ZES DG Deyang 931
1,391
MEHERAEZES S EIKF - % The balances with related parties are all trade in nature,
BREETERE SEEBR KR unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
BEENFEERE - repayment. The carrying amounts of these balances
approximate to their fair values.
BB 22 5 E R E i sE3501) The nature of the transactions with related parties is

WE - disclosed in note 35(1) above.
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36.

b‘ ;_4
iﬂh_i

BELRZ RERE) 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(continued)
(4) XEETIEEEEASZFHH (4) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group

—TTAF

2007

ARBTF T

RMB'000

e MoERL Salaries and allowances 1,589

RIRRRAIH R Retirement benefit contributions 55

IIEEEEIRERS Equity-settled share option expense -
TNFEEEEEAE  Total compensation paid to key management

2 4855 personnel 1644

EFMe 2 FBEN XS -

MHEEREE 2B HWREE

AEEZFEZeMTAGTETARMNE
RRTERLRE RIRITHESR - BLER
TAZFZENA/RAKEZEEEREE
T ARERAZRERNEZEEL L
HbeMEELBE  PlRKE SR
K BNESERALENER -

AEBERTAS R ETERBRARESR
EBN=mERE - SMNERR - EERR KRB
EvRk EFEERUMEEESEAR
B2 BORBLALANT

FRER

AEBESHM SN RSB T BRALE
BB F BN R 2 AR R RS A E
EMERZERFHER -

REEZIRTERERF R LERBPEHR
B 75 TRz MIFE28 ©

Rl 2 2 TR 7 B 2 B SO A2 21 A K
BE P2 B2 R R E

B/ 488
2o

36.

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8
above.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives,
comprise bank loans and cash and bank balances. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade and bills
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with
floating interest rates and time deposits with fixed interest rates
which are short term.

The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of the
bank loans of the Group are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points in interest rates
would have no material impact on the Group's profit or loss and
equity during the year.
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The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales, purchases or bank loans by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currency. The Group
entered into forward currency contracts for bank loans and tends
to accept foreign currency exchange risk avoidance or allocation
terms when arriving at purchase and sales contracts to minimise
its transactional currency exposures. The Group takes rolling
forecast on the foreign currency revenue and expenses, matches
the currency and the amount incurred, so as to alleviate the
impact on business due to exchange rate fluctuations.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the balance
sheet date to a reasonably possible change in the United States
dollar, Hong Kong dollar and Japanese yen exchange rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax and
the Group’s equity due to changes in the fair value of monetary

assets and liabilities.

BRFTSBA
SEFIG I,
(R
#m, Increase/  fEzigin
(B2 )= (decrease) (R )*
Increase/ in profit Increase/
(decrease) before (decrease)
rate income tax in equity*
w AREFTT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
2008%F12A31H 31 December 2008
iWETHARKEE If United States dollar weakens against RMB (5) 602 (52)
WETRARBRE If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB (5) (1,785) 168
BB R AR #E If Japanese Yen weakens against RMB (5) 176 (4)
iWETHAREHE If United States dollar strengthens against RMB 5 (602) 52
WETHAREHE If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 5 1,785 (168)
BB LAREHE If Japanese Yen strengthens against RMB 5 (176) 4
2007%12A31H 31 December 2007
WETEAREBRE If United States dollar weakens against RMB (5) (1,491) (534)
WEBTREARBERE If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB (5) (1,704) (5,239)
BB R AR #E If Japanese Yen weakens against RMB (5) 312 (3)
WETHAREAE If United States dollar strengthens against RMB 5 1491 534
WETHAREAE If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 5 1,704 5,239
MBEELAREHE If Japanese Yen strengthens against RMB 5 (312) 3

= TREREARN

108

*

Excluding retained earnings

FHER (KE) BRAT » —2F/\FFH
EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED ® Annual Report 2008
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The carrying amount of the trade receivables represents the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets. The Group has a policy in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history and to
closely monitor the collection of the trade receivables on an
ongoing basis, and the Group has also entered into insurance
contracts for certain trade receivables to reduce the credit risk.
The Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these financial assets.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within
the Group as the customer bases of the Group's trade receivables
are widely dispersed.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 20
to these financial statements.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash

equivalents and have available funding through bank and other
borrowings to meet its working capital requirements.

109
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial

liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, were as follows:

Group

Interest-bearing bank loans
Trade and bills payables
Other payables and accruals
Due to related parties

Interest-bearing bank loans
Trade and bills payables
Other payables and accruals
Due to related parties

“ETLF
2007

H—EE
NESES Less than #Et
On demand 1 year Total
ARBTFIT ARETT ARETET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
- 40,479 40,479
- 138,219 138,219
- 33,420 33,420
1,391 - 1,391
212,118 213,509
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AEXREE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Company

Other payables and accruals
Due to subsidiaries

Other payables and accruals
Due to subsidiaries

AT
2007

DR—4F
eSS Less than #aEt
On demand 1 year Total
AREFTT ARETT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
- 2,125 2,125
17,408 - 17,408
17,408 2,125 19,533

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and

to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business

and maximize shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or

processes during the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007.
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MHEREEZBNREEE) 36.

EREE(E)
AEBUNEEBBLERERELR  BESB
B RENVEFER ABEAR N EEEF
B EINFEARTER  BHESER
MEREEREMENFBREEESS
BYE - EAESARRERSFAZE
hEzE AEBECZHREBEEAGBL X
HWIFESIE 2 KF £ o FR20084F K 2007 &
2ABZEEBBLERNAT :

FFERITER Interest-bearing bank lo

ERE ZRFLERNREIE  Trade and bills payables

HAh e Other payables

B BReRBEEEY Less: Cash and cash equ
(BaE22)

B F5 Net debt

N EIRERS A AL Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

R EBFRE Equity and net debt
BERELE Gearing ratio
Bk 2 #Ht & 37.

B ERROI2009F4 A 4R EEZES I E
BT o

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated
as the sum of bank loans, trade and bills payables, and other
payables less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents equity
attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The Group's
policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The
gearing ratios at 31 December 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

2007
ARETT
RMB'000

ans 40,479
138,219

25,145
ivalents (note 22)

(210,334)

(6,491)

388,075

388,075

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 24 April 2009.
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